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Highlights of 2001 “ET-F2HE

B Aviation sector results hit hard by events as 2001 progressed, but WiZERRZ —FE—AF B F T

telecommunications and investment property grew strongly. L BNCY §EVES-2/ES VY R
iR -

B Crric Telecom 1616 established as a major Asia Pacific telecommunications il &l 1616 K8 7% 55 K I T B 09 & afl
hub. fsdt -

B Opporiunities in the Mainland airline industry being actively pursued. R 7 JFE I K T 22 S 1 488

B Crric Capital Markets Holdings Limited and Shanghai cp Guojian L EE A E BRI IR Al
Pharmaceutical Company Lid. joint ventures established. R L il I (4 A PR 2N A o

B /ncome producing and development properties bought in the center TE LV 107 O FEA BT 38 A T 35 JE Y
of Shanghai. VEX

B Jinancial resources to take up opportunities as they develop. A1 TR > R LIERACH) 1 B -

in vik$ million 2001 2000 CVzange EL) IR AN Wit

Profit Attributable to Shareholders 2,110 3.291 -36% e 5 FE At i ¥

Per Share (1K$) #HE (E¥T)

Earnings 0.96 1.49 -36% B

Dividend 0.80 0.85 -6% 13}

in uKk$ million IDE 3 e S

Shareholders’ Funds 41,637 41,304 1% RR&ES

Net Debt 10,008 10,508 -5% FEE



Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders FEBRRRE

Cirric Pacific’s profit for the year 2001 was HK$2,110 million, or Hk$0.96 per share. A
result 36% lower than the previous year is not welcome news, but sharcholders should
be reassured the main reason is easily identifiable and understandable: the aviation
sector of our business was hit hard after September 11 at a time when the world and

regional economies were already deteriorating.

A key measure of the health of any business is the cash flow it generates, and [ am
delighted to report that our businesses generated a very healthy cashflow in 2001, and
the Group is well prepared to take up any good investment opportunities

going forward.

Recognizing Ciric Pacific’s continuing strong and stable cash flows, and substantial
financial resources, the Board is recommending a final dividend of Hk$0.60 giving
shareholders a dividend of HK$0.80 for 2001, only a little less than in 2000 reflecting
the reduced profit.

The major growth in Ciric Pacific’s profit in 2001 came from the telecommunication

and property sectors.

The contribution from our telecommunications businesses was three times that of
last year reaching almost HK$300 million. Citic Telecom 1616, our fast-growth 1pD
wholesaler, was the largest contributor to this result, but Ciric Guoan and ¢ also

made significant contributions too.

The contribution from investment property grew 15% driven by increased rental from

the Festival Walk shopping mall.

In other sectors of our business — marketing and distribution had a challenging year,
although at the operating level the result was satisfactory, and specialty steel

manufacturing tripled its profits.

Strategy
Crric Pacific’s business is diversified but clearly focused in a limited number of sectors.
We believe that diversity builds strength, and that superior results come from focusing

on what we do best.
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Geographically Ciric Pacific will continue to have its solid base in Hong Kong but
focusing increasingly on the vast market of the Mainland of China. Our knowledge and
contacts in China are wide and deep, and they have led to success particularly in Civil
Infrastructure and Power. Citic Pacific will continue to focus on China. Even when
business is done around the world, we are always conscious that the overriding purpose

is to serve the Chinese market.
Let me review the future I see for each of our business sector:

In telecommunications, Citic Telecom 1616 has established itself as one of the major
telecommunication hub in Asia Pacific. The company has established strategic alliance
and cooperative relationship with 125 major international telecom carriers and
operators in over 80 countries. Leveraging on these relationships, Citic 1616

continues to launch new value-added services.

cpenet, which Crrie Pacific acquired late last year, will be our flagship for Internet
services. CPeNet is actively offering individual business users and companies with value-
added services such as corporate connectivity, Virtual Private Networks (vey), Internet

security solutions, data center servers hosting, etc.

After two years of investment, the major part of the China Express Number 1 Backbone
Network has been completed. Because of the concern on telecommunication policies in
China, Ciric Pacific sold the network project to Ciric Hong Kong (Holdings) but
retaining the right to buy it back. This transaction will reduce the Company’s
investment risk, and the necessary infrastructure for the development of Ciric Pacific’s
telecommunication businesses is provided by Ciric 1616°s high quality integrated

platform centered in Hong Kong and linking all over the world.

Crmic Pacific has contributed to aviation in Hong Kong and the tremendous progress
Cathay Pacific and Dragonair have made over the years as two of the best airlines in the
world. The sharp drop in demand for air traffic heavily affected Cathay Pacific in
particular, but there are already early signs of improvement, and both Cathay Pacific
and Dragonair are strategically located to take advantage of the Mainland China
market. The Mainland airline industry is being restructured. Ciric Pacific sees great
potential and new business opportunities to expand. The Company is actively pursuing

these opportunities and the negotiations with relevant parties are making progress.

TESERRID T I - PSR E MM
W IR BUORFER EORTTSG » PERER
FR) 5% 4 I A3 i T 35 TR R A
2 R SR - R LR B B R
B ZEETW o PEREN g
> LU S LB R e B - R OR A SR A
V] AT B D S A > HIRES R B TS A
R T B 2 A -

A 7 SRS 0 AT Rt B T
ST

Bl PEEM 1616 BT KR T
FEAMEAR o 3%\ [ A E 80 B
K~ 125 fl— A PR AL I i S TR AU 7 i
ST R PRI BN S P BAR o 3 LA £
B > AEIHE L R P 1 AR

FE R E LR OEE cronet AR A3 B
T A SE TS P R+ RN TR B 0 ) L A
Witk ISR - DL RS |
PO BRI E S L ol R SE TR R o

I 7 ) M A T A4 D AT © A
H TR M SRS BUR P 5 18 > Tz
I EGPEERE > (RS 7RI - T
A E R TR RS . — B TR
FEBEMER - —RHE 1616 TRV T
AR A R R ARG BRI A
fERE R ENEG R T 22 a
B

FEREINRFEMERRNERE - €2
B T1 o B 2 M REM 2 B C R AU
RRRMEBHIMEAT > PERES AL
fEH TR o 2R ZE A TR R T B
R A 2 A T B TR > (HAT AT
BSOS BB - 1 R Bk
I 2% i 22 BV HEA 22 2 BE TR A AL A
H K R AR 22 S ETE AT AL o IR d
Ak T i 72 SN LB R g o AT B
T A AR B sk IEAE RN AT > 3 IR
I o



Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

Following China’s accession to the World Trade Organization, the financial service
and capital markets in China will expand and grow closer to those of Hong Kong, and
will have huge development potentials. Citic Pacific, together with Ciric Beijing and
Ciric Ka Wah Bank, have established a joint venture — “Ciric: Capital Markets Holdings
Ltd.” — in which Crric Pacific will have 50% interest and participate directly in its
strategy formation and the day-to-day management. The joint venture business will be
built upon the existing broking and investment banking operations of Citic Group in
Hong Kong, and fully utilizes Citic Group’s expertise and broad contacts in Hong
Kong, Mainland and all over the world. While based in Hong Kong, Citic Capital
Markets Holdings will focus on the China market. This new venture is aimed to develop
a leading brand name in the China-focused fund management business, as well as

developing the existing businesses of brokerage and corporate finance.

Crric Pacific recently reached an agreement with Shanghai Lansheng Guojian
Corporation to form a joint venture “Shanghai cp Guojian Pharmaceutical Company
Ltd”. Ciric Pacific will invest up to kMB350 million and will have controlling interest of
51% in the joint venture. cp Guojian’s vision is to build its own research and
development, production and marketing capabilities. The venture will leverage on
Ciric Pacific’s strong financial position, advanced management systems and broad
contacts in international markets. The venture begins with a team of leading biotech
researchers, and also a number of patents that are either registered or are under
registration in China and in other countries. cp Guojian’s immediate focus is the
development of new drugs related to genetic therapy. Biotech will be one of the fastest
growing industries in this century and has great development potential. We believe the

investment will contribute to the Company’s future growth in the coming years.

Ciric Pacific’s team of power industry veterans has built and operates one of the
largest groups of power generation plants in China of any foreign organization with
total capacity of 3,000mMw. The Ligang power station is one of the most profitable in
China. Late last year, the first unit of 200mw at the Huhhot power plant in Inner
Mongolia became operational and the second unit is expected to commence operation
before the end of 2002. Construction work at the Jilin power plant is going smoothly.
As the power industry in China reforms, we will continue to seek new opportunities

investing in power plants.

Our civil infrastructure, consisting of Huangpu bridges and tunnels in Shanghai and

two cross harbour tunnels in Hong Kong, produces reliable long term cashflows.
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Marketing and distribution in Hong Kong and Mainland China is the business of Dah
Chong Hong and Sims Trading which serve the people of Hong Kong and China in
providing high quality products. Hong Kong is a mature but profitable market, and we
are concentrating on delivering improved customer service at a reduced cost. The
Mainland is the opportunity, and a systematic 3-year plan is being implemented both
on the motor and food side of the business to position Dah Chong Hong and Sims
Trading as the premier supplier and distributor of motor vehicles and food products

in China.

In property, the center of cities in Mainland China presents opportunities today.
During the last twelve months Ciric Pacific has invested in developing land in the
center of Shanghai, and bought two income-producing buildings in the same city.
There may be similar opportunities in Shanghai and in Beijing where Ciric Pacific
already owns a 50% interest in the Citic Building. In Hong Kong, the existing
properties are capable of generating significant development profits and stable rental

income in the coming years.

Future
Crmic Pacific moves into the future and the Chinese Year of the Horse with confidence
that our Company will grow and develop in the coming years in the direction I have

already described.

Ciric Pacific has the financial resources to take up new opportunities as they develop.
We are conscious that really good business opportunities are few, and thus we are
disciplined to be patient to identify opportunities that will benefit sharcholders in the

long term.

Itis my pleasure to lead a team of businessmen and women with long, successful and
practical experience in so many disciplines that all work together to propel Ciric
Pacific forward. To every one of them, and our directors, bankers and advisors, I thank

you for all your fine work over the past year and your commitment to the future.

Larry Yung Chi Kin

Chatrman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2002
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Review of Citic Pacific’s Businesses

Ciric Pacific remains focused on its core infrastructure businesses in Hong Kong,

Macau and Mainland China that embrace telecommunications, power generation,

aviation, and civil facilities. Complementing the infrastructure business is the

Company’s interest in property and marketing and distribution.

This Review is current at 14 March 2002.

Infrastructure
Communications

Location
Crmic Telecom 1616 Hong Kong
CPCNet Hong Kong
China Express No. 1 Backbone PRC

Network ™

Citic Guoan PRC
o™ (Macau Telecom) Macau

* 80% ownership sold in tebruary 2002.

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million
S B E T
2001 295
2000 92

oo 54
7
7
g

I
L

Ownership
HEAT 1

100%
100%
80%

50%
20%

Proportion of total earnings

R8T AL B

9%
2%

Crmic Pacific is committed to building a telecommunications business that can offer

comprehensive services to customers in China and their trading partners around

the world.

Citic Telecom 1616

Ciric Telecom 1616 (“16167) (www.citic1616.com) is the market leader in Hong

Kong’s 1bb wholesale market. Revenues rose significantly in 2001 as total monthly

D traffic volume exceeded 150 million minutes, a 6.9 times increase since 1616 was

acquired by Ciric Pacific in May 2000.
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1616 also diversified into outsourcing business, Calling Card Wholesaling and 1pL.c
reselling to strengthen its business model and cash position. With the growth in
personal communications services, 1616 has built a Universal Mobile Operator
Exchange Platform to enable roaming and short message exchange services for mobile
operators worldwide. The service deployment of this is planned for the second quarter
0f2002. The management believes that the Company has both the experience and
expertise to capture the growth not only in the 1bD wholesale business, but also new

services to broaden its customer base and generate additional revenues.

1616 is one of the key platforms on which Citic Pacific strives to build a comprehensive

telecommunications network.

CPCNet

creNet Hong Kong (www.cpenet-hk.com) was launched in February as the successor to

psiNet Hong Kong which Ciric Pacific acquired in September of 2001. cpenet is a
prominent Internet Service Provider serving the corporate business sector of Hong
Kong and bridging opportunities for its customers between China and the rest of the
world through business co-operation, partnerships and franchises. cpenet has a solid
customer base of over 4,000 accounts covering services from connectivity solutions to
the Internet, managed and dedicated server hosting, security services such as Intrusion
Detection Services and Virtual Private Networking Solutions. cpeNet’s target
customers are businesses with demand for 1p solutions and a majority of them already
have plans to expand their businesses in China. Since acquisition, there has been
significant improvement in cpcNet’s businesses with profits recorded since the month
of November. cpcNet is an important part of Citic Pacific’s strategy focusing on value-

added services in the Internet/telecommunications market sector.

China Express No. 1 Backbone Network

Crmic Pacific began building the 32,000 km fibre optic, nation-wide China Express
No. 1 Backbone Network in 2000. Since then work has progressed well with more than
25,000 km of cable already laid by the end of 2001.
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Review of Citic Pacific’s Businesses

In order for the Network to become operational and to begin to generate revenue, a
comprehensive set of relevant licenses is required. Ciric Pacific’s participation in the
PRC telecommunications business as a foreign investor complicates the application
process whereas Citic Beijing has the opportunity to apply for the necessary licenses if

the Network is wholly owned.

In February 2002, shareholders approved the sale at cost of the Company’s 80%
interest in this fibre optic backbone to Crric oK, a wholly owned subsidiary of Crtic
Beijing. To participate in this aspect of telecommunications business in China once the
regulatory environment allows, Citic Pacific has the option if it chooses to buy the

Network back at the then prevailing cost.

Citic Guoan

Crric Guoan’s primary business is its 69.8% interest in Ciric Guoan Information
Industry Co., Ltd. (“Guoan Information”), a Shenzhen Stock Exchange listed
company. Guoan Information operates cable television networks in 10 cities and
provinces in China serving approximately 4 million subscribers. Besides its caTv
networks, Guoan Information also has investments in multi-media advertising, hotel

management, construction, system integration and software development.

Crtic Guoan owns 100% of Citic Building situated in the center of Beijing. This grade

A office building maintains an occupancy rate of over 90%.

CTM
20% owned by Crric Pacific since 1991, Companhia de Telecomunicacoes de Macau
(www.ctm.net) is the provider of fixed line, mobile telephone and Internet access

services to the people of Macau saR.

¢ continued its outstanding performance for the year 2001 with profits rising 18%
to HK$341 million. Its mobile phone user base increased 19% to 172,000 registered
users. Internet subscribers also increased by 25% to 37,800. In September 2001, c™
launched wap services and it will continue to provide value-added services that have

relatively high profit margin.
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Review of Citic Pacific’s Businesses

Ciric Pacific’s power team is actively involved in all phases of the power business from
identifying attractive investment opportunities to supervise construction process and

the actual operations of power plants.

In 2001, demand for electricity increased with total electricity generated from all the

operating units reach 11,398 million kwh, a 5.67% rise from the previous year.

The Huhhot power plant in Inner Mongolia saw its first installed unit of 200
Megawatts (“MW”) become operational in December. The second unit of 200 Mw is
expected to be operational by the third quarter of 2002. This co-generation power
plant has total designed capacity of 400 mw and capable of generating both power

and heat.

In June 2001, Ciric Pacific entered into a joint venture agreement with local partners
to participate in the operation of Jilin co-generation power station located in Jilin
province. This co-generation power plant has a design capacity of 200 Mmw consists of
two 100 mw units. Construction of the first unit has begun and operations expected to
commence at the end of 2002. The second unit is expected to complete by the end
0f2003.

The Ligang coal-fired power station with a total installed capacity of 1,400 mw
continues to be one of the most efficient power plants in China. For 2001, a total of
7,103 million kwh of electricity was generated compared to 6,880 million kwh in
2000, an increase of 3.24% from the previous year. An application for phase I11 of

1,200 mw has been submitted to the relevant government authorities.

The Zhengzhou coal-fired power station has a designed capacity of 1,000 mw and
installed capacity of 600 Mmw comprising a phase I (2x200 Mw) and a phase II (1x200
Mw). For the year 2001, a total of 3,397 million kwh of electricity was generated
compared to 3,062 million kwh, an increase of 10.9%. Application for phase III has

been submitted to the relevant government authorities to seek approval.

10
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Kaifeng power station, with an installed capacity of 125 mw generated 638 million kwh
of electricity in 2001.

The Weihai co-generation power plant generated 76 million kwh of electricity and 2.2
million ¢j of heatin 2001.

Shouguang co-generation power plant generated 185 million kwh of electricity and
1,029,821 tonnes of high temperature/pressure steam in 2001.

Crmic Pacific is committed to utilizing the Company’s experience and expertise in the
power sector to continue its expansion in the power generation area with specific focus

on acquiring existing stations and making them more efficient.

Civil Facilities
Ownership Table and Map

Quwnership
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Review of Citic Pacific’s Businesses
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PIEREZ KI5

Shanghai Lti§

Cirric Pacific’s interest in civil
facilities includes bridges, tunnels

and roads in Shanghai, and Hong Kong.

In the Mainland, Citic Pacific has
interests in all of the cross Huangpu
River facilities in Shanghai which

include two tunnels and three
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bridges providing the necessary
connection between Pu Dong, the
government designated Special
Economic Development Area, and Pu
Xi, the old part of Shanghai. In May
2000, the Shanghai Municipal
Government eliminated toll
collection at all the cross Huangpu
River facilities to stimulate the
development of Pudong. Crtic Pacific
has continued to receive its

contracted returns.
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The Hu Jia Toll Road in which Citic Pacific has a 45% interest has seen daily average
traffic increase of 17% over a year ago to 22,742 vehicles per day for 2001.

Crric Pacific in December of 2001 sold its 50% interest in Chongging Chang Jiang 1yt
Bridge to the joint venture partner due to local authority’s potential plans of
constructing more bridges in the area which could divert traffic which in turn would

reduce the Company’s investment return. The original investment is fully recovered.

In Hong Kong, Ciric Pacific has a 35% interest in a 30-year franchise that operates the

Western Harbour Crossing (“wtc”) (www.westernharbourtunnel.com), a key section

of the Route 3 highway which links Hong Kong, Mainland China and Chek Lap Kok
Airport. Following an increase in toll in late 2000, wrc registered its first profit. Daily
average traffic, however, experienced a slight drop of 7.2% to 39,702 vehicles per day
compared with 42,797 vehicles per day in 2000.

Crric Pacific is a controlling shareholder in the Eastern Harbour Crossing road tunnel

(www.easternharbourtunnel.com.hk) with a 70.8% shareholding. This was increased

in March 2002 from 69%. It continues to operate smoothly registering a profit of
1K$321 million a slight increase of 0.9% over 2000. Traffic throughput was 74,596
vehicles per day compared with 72,228 vehicles per day in 2000. Citic Pacific also

owns 50% of the rail tunnel which contributed Hk$ 12 million.
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Aviation
Ownership
Location A HEAHE
Cathay Pacific Hong Kong % 25.8%
Dragonair Hong Kong % # 28.5%
HK Air Cargo Terminals Hong Kong % 10%

Contribution to earnings

Year HKS million Proportion of total earnings
FH e Y WA FILE 0]
2001 324 10%
2000 1,475 36%

The global economic downturn that began in early 2001 was already impacting the
worldwide aviation industry when the operating environment was made worse by the
terrorist attacks in the u.s. International as well as regional air traffic demand declined
significantly in the second half of 2001 which severely affected Cathay Pacific and to a

certain extent Dragonair.

Cathay Pacific Airways (www.cathaypacific.com), an international passenger and

freight carrier based in Hong Kong, serves 62 destinations around the world. Ciric

Pacific is the second largest shareholder and is actively involved in its management.

Revenues for 2001 were 1k$30.4 billion, a decline of 12%. Profits were down 87% to
HK$ 657 million. The number of passengers reduced by 5% to 11.3 million. Passenger
load factor dropped by 5 points and passenger yield also decreased by 5%. Cargo
experienced similar results. Total tonnage carried was 704,000, an 8.5% drop from
the previous year. Cargo yield dropped sharply by 11% due to increased competition
and falling demand. Cathay Pacific management has taken a number of measures to
contain costs and improve operating efficiency which includes grounding planes and
suspending unprofitable routes. Cathay Pacific is well prepared to meet the challenging

environment; it operates one of the most fuel efficient fleets in the world.
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Dragonair (www.dragonair.com) is a regional carrier that operates flights to 27

destinations in Asia out of which 18 are to Chinese cities. It also operates freighter
services to Shanghai, Europe and Osaka. The airline was less affected by the global
aviation downturn given its regional focus. Passenger carried and cargo uplifted
increased 13% and 29% respectively. Net revenue rose 18% to Hk$4.,885 million.
However, profits decreased 37% to nk$339 million primarily due to lower passenger

and cargo yield and the continued high cost of launching the freighter service.

HACTL (www.hactl.com), in which Citic Pacific has a 10% interest, operates the largest
air cargo terminal in the world. In 2001, a total of 1.59 million tonnes of cargo was
handled, 9% down on last year. However, consolidated profits increased by 25% to

HK$391 million largely due to savings on interest charges and operational efficiencies.

Crmic Pacific considers aviation a major component of its infrastructure business and a
core area of development in the future. Both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair with Hong
Kong as their base and fast growing Mainland China as the neighbour are strategically

well positioned to capture greater opportunities in aviation.

Environment
Ouwnership
Location 1B A
South East N T Landfill Hong Kong % 30%
(“Green Valley Landfill”)
Chemical Waste Treatment Plant Hong Kong % i 20%
(“Enviropace™)
West Kowloon Transfer Station Hong Kong % 30%
North Lantau Transfer Station Hong Kong % 50%
Airport Waste Hong Kong % 30%
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Review of Citic Pacific’s Businesses

Contribution to earnings

Year HKS million Proportion of total earnings
FH e WA FILE 0]
2001 44 1%
2000 55 1%

The Green Valley Landfill at Junk Bay, in the South East New Territories of Hong
Kong, is a landfill of 100 hectares. In 2001, over 2.6 million tonnes of waste was
processed, an average of 7,359 tonnes per day, slightly lower than last year due to a

reduction of construction waste.

Enviropace, located on Tsing Yi Island, is the only chemical waste treatment plant in

Hong Kong. In 2001, more than 62,000 tonnes of waste was treated.

The West Kowloon Transfer Station has a designed capacity of 2,500 tonnes per day.
Approximately 623,000 tonnes of waste was processed in 2001 an increase of 10%
from 2000.

The North Lantau Transfer Station in which Citic Pacific has a 50% interest has a daily
capacity of 1,200 tonnes. It serves the Chek Lap Kok Airport, Discovery Bay and
nearby areas. In 2001, more than 45,500 tonnes of waste was processed, an increase
of 20% over 2000.

The Airport Waste is the waste collection facility of Chek Lap Kok Airport where more
than 13,000 tonnes was collected in 2001, same as in 2000.

Marketing and Distribution

Ownership

Location i & HEA HE

Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong % 100%
Sims Trading Hong Kong % 100%

Contribution to earnings

Year kS million Proportion of wtal earnings
ER W AT AR E RO
2001 119 1%
2000 226 5%
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Ciric Pacific’s interests in Marketing and Distribution consists mainly 100% owned

subsidiaries Dah Chong Hong, universally known as bci, and Sims Trading.

Dah Chong Hong (www.dch.com.hk), with substantial operations in Hong Kong and

Mainland China and businesses in Japan, Singapore and Canada, is a major distributor

of motor vehicles and consumer and food commodity products.

pci Motor: pct Motor distributes a broad range of passenger and commercial vehicles
including Acura, Audi, Bentley, par, Honda, Isuzu, MaN, Nissan, up Nissan Diesel,
Rolls Royce and Volkswagen. Its 23% market share in the Hong Kong motor market
makes it one of the largest distributors of motor vehicles in the territory. bch also
provides after-sale services through its five conveniently located motor service centres.
Total vehicles sold in 2001 were 10,233, a 0.8% decrease from 2000, but sales in the
second half were only 73% of the first half due to reduced demand and keen

competition through the offering of purchase incentives which reduced profit margin.

In recent years, bc has been rapidly expanding in Mainland China which the company
believes will become its main profit contributor in the coming years. Distribution, sales
and service networks have been expanded to complement the expansion including over
ten integrated sales outlets with after-sales service and spare part supports, regional
parts distribution centres and traditional service centres in major cities across China.
pch currently has distributorship and dealership in the Mainland of both imported
brands such as Bentley, M, Honda, Isuzu, Nissan, Renault, Rolls Royce and
Volkswagen and locally made vehicles such as Guangzhou Honda, Hainan Mazda and
Qingling. Amongst the imported brands, Nissan passenger cars and Isuzu trucks have
been the best sellers. Although the recent trade restrictions between China and Japan
had adversely affected the Japanese vehicle import into Mainland China in the second
half of 2001, total vehicles sold to the Mainland China market exceeded 4,000 in
2001. pch will move full steam ahead on developing the China motor business with

additions of more integrated dealership outlets expected in the future.
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Review of Citic Pacific’s Businesses

pcH Marketing and Distribution: pci’s distribution of consumer and food
commodity products includes provisions, rice and cereal, edible oils, Chinese
foodstuffs, meat and produce, cosmetics, building materials, and home electrical
appliances. The Group sources globally and supplies food to retailers, wholesalers and
the catering industry in Hong Kong and Mainland China through efficient logistics
support. In 2001, Hong Kong businesses were directly affected by the economic
slowdown which resulted in weak demand for the products. In China, bch concentrated
its effort on growing the distribution business as well as restructuring the chicken and
pig processing businesses by effective cost control and continued selective expansion.
pCH has established a network of 11 strategically located regional offices across China

to provide distribution and logistics services to both local and overseas suppliers.

Sims Trading: Sims Trading (www.simshk.com) specialises in the distribution of

branded food, household and healthcare products in Hong Kong, Macau, and Mainland
China. Ovaltine, Barilla, Pauls and Pocari Sweat are distributed in Hong Kong, and
Ferrero, Pauls, Ovaltine and Martell are distributed in China. Sims is also extensively
involved in providing third party logistics in Hong Kong to major companies such as
Heineken, Gillette, Pizza Hut and Reckitt Benkeiser. Since its purchase by Ciric
Pacific in 2001, Sims has been working on synergies between itself and Dah Chong
Hong. Examples are the transfer of Sims’ meat commodity business to pcr and of bei’s

Healthcare business to Sims Trading.
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Property L/ES
Ounership

Tipe  HEHI Location b & FEA R
Crric Tower Office HFH# Central ~ HB 40%  HfEKRE
Festival Walk Retail/Office %% /5 F#  Tat Chee Avenue 2 50% XK
pcH Commercial Centre Office HF1# Quarry Bay il f J 100% KEATHES L
Ciric Square Retail/Office % /5 F# Shanghai i 80% HEREKY
Royal Pavilion Service Apt.  IRBAX LA Shanghai ki 100%  FHElAwE
Discovery Bay Residential Township £ [& Lantau Island K 11| 50% i 5
Westgate Garden Commercial/Residential ¥ % /{1 € Shanghai | 100% &1 H50
The Victoria Towers ~ Commercial/Residential 7 2%/ ff % Canton Road & % 15% 5k
Investment properties Various £ M Various £ i 100% HK&EW*

[t < BRAR BATH H A RS f7 £ 2 (A
BLYFI » Y0 1B R ]

Note: Except for properties in Japan and Singapore that v owns mainly for operational purposes, the properties

are in Hong Kong and the rrc
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Contribution to earnings

Year kS million Proportion of wotal earnings
FE W T AR E R0
2001 633 19%
2000 422 10%

Ciric Pacific has an experienced property development and management team capable
of managing top quality, large-scale residential and commercial property projects. The
Company made a strategic decision in 2001 to enter the Mainland China property

market in Shanghai.

In July, Crric Pacific signed an agreement with the Shanghai Government to develop a
major residential housing project in the Huang Pu District. The site is approximately
0.74 million sq.ft. and located adjacent to Xizang Nanlu and Jianguo Donglu within
walking distance from a future subway station. With a gross floor area of about

2.8 million sq.ft., this development (Westgate Garden) will comprise a number of
residential towers, a multi-storey commercial complex, retail shops and underground
carparks. The project will be developed in phases with the first phase planned for sale
in 2003/2004.

In December of 2001, Ciric Pacific entered into agreements to buy an approximately
80% interest in Citic Square, a premier office tower in Nanjing Xi Lu in Shanghai, and
a 100% interest in Royal Pavilion, a luxury service apartment in Hua Shan Lu in the
centre of Shanghai, for a maximum consideration of HK$2,050 million and Hk$720
million respectively. Crtic Square, has a current occupancy rate of 94%. The Royal

Pavilion is 92% occupied.

In Hong Kong, work on the Discovery Bay project is progressing on schedule. Yi Pak
Bay, located in the northern part of Discovery Bay, is being developed in phases to a
major residential area complete with a central park, a resort hotel and a shopping mall.
Total gross floor area is 2.3 million sq.ft. The sales of phase 11 (Siena One) with a
gross floor area of 0.34 million sq.ft. began in February 2002 and over 60% of the
298 units were sold up to the end of February 2002. The construction work for phase
12 with a gross floor area of 0.64 million sq.ft. is well underway. The development of
Disney Theme Park near Discovery Bay on Lantau Island and the opening of the tunnel
connecting Discovery Bay and the Airport road system boosted further the

development potential of Discovery Bay.
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The Victoria Towers, a residential and commercial complex with gross floor area of
1.04M sq.ft. joined developed with the Cheung Kong Group is scheduled for
completion at the end of 2002. Sales began in November of 2001 and almost half of
the 988 units were sold by the end of February 2002.

Crric Tower, the Company’s headquarters is a landmark on the Hong Kong waterfront
comprising of 562,000 sq.ft. of offices, retail shops and restaurants and a footbridge
linking it to the Admiralty MTR station. The building is currently 92% occupied.

Festival Walk, located at the intersection of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass
Transit Railway Station in Kowloon Tong was developed with the Swire Group. The

1.2 million sq.ft. shopping and office complex has provided Ciric Pacific with strong
and stable cash flow. The demand for space has been very good with current occupancy
rate of 100%.

In addition to the above mentioned properties, Crtic Pacific also has a landbank that is

available for re-development. The three major pieces of land are:

Approximate Site Area (sq.ft.)
BATAARIE T (FI5R)

Approximate Gross Floor Area (sq./i.)
WAL (FIrR)

Location
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Contribution to earnings

Year kS million Proportion of wotal earnings
FE W T AR E R0
2001 95 3%
2000 29 1%

Jiangsu cp Xingcheng Special Steel produces many grades of carbon and alloy steel.
Profits for the year 2001 registered a gain of 32% from 2000.

Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works specializes in the production of special steels
using the most modern production facilities. For the year 2001, profits increased 84%

from the previous year.

Wuxi Huada Motors Company produces low noise, low vibration, proper torque and
smooth turn electrical motors for the domestic and European market. For the year
2001, sales increased 18% to Hk$ 131 million compared to 2000.

Pirelli Telecom Cables produces mainly optical cables for the telecommunications

industry. Profits for the year grew significantly compared to 2000.

Developing Businesses

In March 2002, Citic Pacific formed a joint venture with Crtic Beijing and Crtic Ka
Wah Bank — Ciric Capital Markets Holdings Limited in which Ciric Pacific will hold a
50% interest. The jv will focus on fund management business as well as developing the

brokerage and corporate finance business.

Crmic Pacific, in January 2002, formed a joint venture with Lansheng Guojian
Corporation in Shanghai to develop a bio-pharmaceutical business in Mainland China.
The jv will focus on conducting research and development in bio-technology pharmacy,

especially in the area of cancer therapy.

In 2001, Crric Pacific formed a joint venture with Fudan University to develop
distance learning in Mainland China. The jv engages in e-learning, distance education
and executive training businesses by leveraging of the academic resources

of Fudan University.
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Financial Review and Analysis

Review of 2001 Consolidated Financial Results

The historical figures in this Financial Review and Analysis have been adjusted to
follow the new or revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practices
implemented in 2001 and described in Note 1 to the accounts on page 69. These
adjustments are merely book entries and have no implication for the actual value of the

Company’s assets, or its cashflow in any year.

These new accounting policies reduced dividend income in 2001 by nk$ 10 million
and increased the amortisation of goodwill by HK$ 186 million, a total decrease in net
profit of HK$ 196 million. Had they been applied in 2000, dividend income would have
increased by Hk$36 million and the amortisation of goodwill by Hk$ 175 million, a net

decrease in net profit of HK$ 139 million.

For ease of year to year comparison and appreciation of the underlying trend in the
charts of Attributable Profit and Contribution, the profit made on the sale of shares in

Hong Kong Telecom in 1997 of nk$3,236 million are excluded.

Attributable Profit
HkSmllion W E L

1997 3,965
1998 2,628

1999 2,735

2000 3,291

2001 2,110

The net profit atributable to shareholders for 2001 was Hk$2,110 million, a decrease
of 36% compared with Hk$ 3,291 million achieved in 2000.
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Contribution

The following chart shows the after tax contribution each business made to corporate

interest expense of debt raised by Crric Pacific, overhead expenses and amortisation of

goodwill. The percentage is the proportion of contribution amongst the businesses in
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Financial Review and Analysis

Compared with the contribution for the year 2000:

24

Increased profit at the Eastern Harbour Crossing and the first profitable year at
the Western Harbour Crossing, both in Hong Kong, was responsible for the

increased contribution from Civil Infrastructure.

Aviation decreased by 78% mainly due to a decline in both the load factor and
yields for Cathay Pacific’s passengers and cargo business, particularly in the
second half of 2001. Dragonair’s passengers business performed as well as 2000,

but the new cargo business suffered from a 25% reduction in cargo yield.

Property sales in 2001 were mainly sales of The Victoria Towers at Canton Road,
but they were much smaller than the sales of La Serene and Neo Horizon at
Discovery Bay in 2000. The contribution from property leasing increased with
particular strong growth at Festival Walk. The 2000 result was distorted by a

1K$244 million write-off of newly completed infrastructure in Discovery Bay.

Power Generation decreased mainly due to a reduced sharcholding in cLp, and the

timing of dividends declared by the operating companies in the Mainland.

Communications increased significantly mainly due to the full year contribution
of the acquisition of Citic Guoan and significant growth in the sales of Ciric

Telecom 1616 since it joined the Group in 2000.

Marketing and Distribution decreased 47% mainly due to contribution from the
motor business whose profits reported a decrease of 13% for the year and further
reduced by losses of other trading business especially the prc food business where

an impairment loss of HK$ 75 million for fixed assets was recorded.

Manufacturing increased due to increased sales of specialty steel.
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Geographical Distribution of Contribution and Assets

FE AT

H=1—H&H

as at 31 December 2001

43% 47%

2%

57%

51%

Contribution% i FI Ik Assetsat Book Value % HETHI 428 (B

Net Interest Expenses
The Group’s net interest expenses before capitalisation decreased from HK$ 729

million to HK$659 million mainly due to the decrease of the average cost of borrowing.

Overhead Expenses
The Group’s general and administration expenses increased mainly due to expansion of

communications segment and the expenses for business development.

Amortization and Revaluation

Accounting standards require two major adjustments that are unrelated to the cashflow
of our business. Goodwill — the amount paid for buying a business that exceeds the
value of its physical and identifiable assets — must be amortised to the profit and loss
account over its useful life not exceeding 20 years. In 2001 HK$ 186 million of goodwill
was amortised to the profit and loss account. Before 2001, goodwill was written off to
reserves and as at 31 December 2001 HK$2,476 million of goodwill is included in
reserves. As at 2001 year end, Ciric Pacific had a total of unamortised goodwill of

HK$2,549 million carried as an asset in the balance sheet.
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Financial Review and Analysis

In certain defined circumstances accounting standards require listed investments to be
revalued to market value at the end of each accounting period. This revaluation caused
Crric Pacific to record an unrealised loss of Hk$ 166 million in 2001 compared with an
unrealised gain of HK$225 million in 2000, a change of HKk$391 million between the
two years. But the market value of the investments held at 31 December 2001

exceeded their original cost.

Taxation
The effective rate of tax increased from 6% to 12% in 2001 mainly due to increase in
the share of profits from Guoan which is subject to PrC tax rate and over provision for

prior years written back in 2000 by Cathay Pacific.

Shareholders’ Returns

Crric Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for which it has used
carnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects its businesses to provide returns
on investment over their lives that will provide shareholders with an adequate return

on equity.

Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share were HK$0.96 for the year 2001, a decrease of 36% compared with
HK$1.49 for the year 2000.

kS BT
1.86 1.52
1997 I .38
1998 1.24
1999 1.29
2000 1.49
2001 0.96
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Cash Flow Per Share

The cash flow per share was Hk$2.4 for the year 2001.

K BT
2.3 3.8
1997 I .1
1998 3.2
1.7 71
1999 I ©.5
2.0 0.7
2000 | P
2001 2.4

Shareholders’ Equity

Sharcholders’ equity defined as sharcholders” funds, plus Hk$2.5 billion of unimpaired

goodwill written off to reserves for accounting purposes, was Hk$44.1 billion as at 31

December 2001, an increase of 1% as compared to 31 December 2000.
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Sharcholders” equity per share at 31 December 2001 was Hk$20.1 as compared to

HK$19.9 at 31 December 2000.
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Financial Review and Analysis

Dividend Per Share
Itis proposed to pay a final dividend for 2001 of HK$0.6 per share on 15 May 2002.

K T
020 0.50 0.30
1997 1.00
020 0.50
1998 I 0.70
020 0.55 2.00
1999 I ©.75
020 0.65
2000 I 055
020 0.60
2001 I 0.50
Turnover

Motor trading turnover decreased 4% in the year of 2001 compared with the year of

2000, and general trading turnover increased by 19 % mainly due to the acquisition of

Sims Trading Group on 28 February 2001. Manufacturing turnover increased 22%

due to increased sales of steel while communications turnover increased by 2.5 times

due to the growth of business of Crtic Telecom 1616 Group and acquisition of creNet

Hong Kong (formerly known as psivet Hong Kong). Other turnover in 2001

represented mainly sales of listed investments.

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure for year of 2001 was incurred mainly on the China Express

Backbone Network (which Crtic Pacific disposal all 80% interest subsequent to the

year end 2001) in communication projects, the property development at Discovery Bay

and Shanghai, the acquisition of Sims Trading Group and creNet Hong Kong.
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Financial Review and Analysis

Group Liquidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

Ciric Pacific aims to finance its business with liabilities appropriate to their cash flows,
employing limited or non-recourse project finance when it is available. The financing
and cash management activities of the Group are centralized except where operating
businesses such as Dah Chong Hong or Sims Trading are delegated with authority to
manage their own short term banking facilities, mainly for trade finance and short term

working capital purposes.

Ciric Pacific aims to diversify its funding sources through utilization of both the
banking and capital markets. In addition to the bond holders in Asia, Europe and North
America, the Company maintains borrowing relationships with over 70 financial

institutions based all over the world.

Currency risks are managed by financing non Hong Kong dollar assets as far as
possible with matching debt. For instance the us$ cash flow arising from most

infrastructure projects in Mainland China are matched against us$ debt.

The continued development of both rMB debt and equity markets is very important to
Ciric Pacific as the focus of our businesses are increasingly towards Mainland China
and projects generating RMB cashflow. Whenever possible, RvB financing will be

arranged for these investments.

In dealing with derivative products, the Company’s policy only permits transactions for
hedging purposes, speculative dealings are strictly prohibited. Counterparties’ credit
risks are also carefully reviewed, in general, the Company only deals with those

financial institutions whose credit ratings are no less than single A.

Cash Flow From Operations

Cash contribution from operations in 2001 from all businesses in the Group was
approximately HK$ 3.4 billion. The infrastructure sector contributed approximately
HK$2.4 billion mainly from power generation, civil facilities and dividends received
from Cathay Pacific. The property sector contributed cash flow of over Hk$580 million
mainly from the rental income. The cash contribution from Marketing & Distribution

was approximately HK$ 320 million.

Cash received from selling marketable securities also contributed approximately
HK$ 1.2 billion in 2001.
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Group Debt and Liquidity

Taking advantage of favorable market conditions, Citic Pacific completed several large
fund raising transactions in 2001. In April, an agreement was signed with a major prc
bank to provide Ciric Pacific with large sum of long term rvB financing for the
Company’s future investment in Mainland China. In May, Citic Pacific issued a us$450
million 7.625% 10-year bond, establishing the Company’s name in the international
debt capital market. In August, a HK$3.8 billion 5.5/7 year syndicated loan facility was
signed with 23 banks. During the year, the Company also raised new funds, or
extended the maturity, of approximately HK$800 million through bilateral loans

arrangements.

As of 31 December 2001, the Group’s total outstanding debt was HK$ 14..6 billion,
cash and deposit with banks were HK$4.6 billion to give net debt of HK$ 10 billion. Net
debt divided by total capital (total capital is defined as the aggregate of net debt,

shareholders’ funds and unimpaired goodwill written off to reserves) was 18%.

Save for the regulatory constraints (for RMB borrowings in the mainland for example)
and operational considerations, the Group’s borrowings are centralised at the parent
company level according to Group policy. As of 31 December 2001, the Company’s

borrowing structure is summarised in the following table:

SEEERADES

R R 2 TR PERER -EE—
FOE L HRE GRS o S4EMA > A
SR B ep ] — ) R ERA T AR T Wk B fE
T AR BRI R RIA
RUERE - I PEREET—HAHE
VO T #3055 7.625 2 10 4
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K o AR R EE T B AL A R K
SN L AN ST
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SR WS — ETI TSI » 5L R
SO M T » TR
—FE - BRI 1% (244
LA - MRS KB
W2 PR M) -

BRI (U BUCEE L ARASHE) R

BEEEN > AR HRITLIMALE
—HEORE A A AT o

5 B BEEBEF e
Within Second Third o Over &l
in HK$ million First Year Year Fifih Years 5 Years Total ULt T A
Parent Company'" 701 338 7,713 3,510 12,262 HLHEO
Sub-total: 701 338 7,713 3,510 12,262 /hFE:
Subsidiaries Wt e 2
Marketing and Distribution 410 15 20 0 445 8 5 ]Iy $
China Express No.1 Backbone H I A — %
Network® 541 176 283 189 1,189 CEE
Manufacturing 471 31 80 26 608 Wik
Others 107 28 0 0 135 HoAth
Sub-total: 1,529 250 383 215 2,377 NG
Total: 2,230 588 8,096 3,725 14,639 Mt

(1) Including a vs$450 million 10-year bond which was issued by a wholly owned special purposes vehicle
and is fully guaranteed by Ciric Pacific.

(2)  These borrowings were transferred with the project when it was sold in February 2002.
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Financial Review and Analysis

Undrawn facilities available to the Group totalled Hk$8.8 billion of which
approximately HK$5.9 billion were long term committed facilities, Hk$ 1.7 billion were
money market lines and the balance were trade facilities. These undrawn facilities,
combined with the strong recurrent cash flow generated from operations, provided

ample financial resources to the Group to implement its investment strategies.

Employment of Derivative Products
In the normal course of its business, Citic Pacific employs a combination of financial
instruments, including derivative products, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in

interest and currency rates.

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate
option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the interest rate characteristics of its
borrowings. These derivative contracts are linked to specific liabilities and are not for

speculative purposes.

As of 31 December 2001, the Company had interest rate swap agreements outstanding
with a notional amount of approximately Hk$ 1.6 billion. Under these agreements,
Crric Pacific is to exchange either fixed or floating rate or interest with its
counterparties, without the exchange of the underlying notional amounts. The

objective is to stabilise the overall cost of borrowings over time.

As at 31 December 2001, approximately 67% of the Group’s total borrowings after
swap bear interest at floating rates and the remaining 33% are at fixed rates. The

average cost of debt in 2001 was 6% compared with 7% a year before.

Ciric Pacific enters into cross currency swap contracts to change the denomination of
its borrowings as part of its management to limit foreign currency exposures. The
Company does not engage in foreign currency speculation. At 31 December 2001, the
Company had total cross currency swap contracts outstanding with a notional amount

of approximately HK$2.3 billion.
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The denomination of the Group’s borrowings after currency swaps and denomination

of the cash and deposits with banks at 31 December 2001 were:

CEEEF A= BRER R
R SO B B BLRA T A AR T

HK$ million Equivalent

W o A
& Borrowings 5,235 6,772 2,122 455 B5) 14,639
B4 RAF Cash and Deposits 1,066 3.068 325 157 15 4,631
5 S Net Borrowings 4,169 3,704 1,797 298 40 10,008
{oF SR e = e Percentage 42% 3% 18% 3% 0% 100%
Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assets HBERRIEREE

The aggregate outstanding amount of guarantees issued by Ciric Pacific not included
in consolidated borrowings was approximately Hk$2,200 million as of 31 December
2001. These are mainly the guarantee to Us Exim Bank export credit facility for
Ligang Power Station, and a guarantee to an associated company, Treasure Trove
Limited, for a Hk$2,400 million syndicated loan facility of which Ciric Pacific’s 62%
share of the borrowing is lent to Citic Pacific. This is included as a liability in the

balance sheet as “loans due to associated companies” (see note 14 to the accounts on

page 90).

Other than the guarantees as described above, the Group has not provided any other
guarantees for borrowing facilities granted to associated companies. Festival Walk
and Discovery Bay are financed by their sharcholders and do not have external
borrowings; other associated companies and co-operative joint ventures such as
Cathay Pacific, Dragonair, Western Harbour tunnel and power stations have raised

debts to finance their activities without recourse to their shareholders.

As at 31 December 2001, assets of HK$ 164 million (2000: 1k$2,005 million) were
pledged to secure loan facilities utilised by subsidiaries. The amount of the pledged

assets were substantially reduced following the full repayment of the project finance

loan at the subsidiary company, New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Ltd., in July 2001.
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Financial Review and Analysis A B ERE R 4T

Total Debt B4R
Total debt decreased due to the repayment of bank borrowings. A (R 25 SR T i R B R AR D
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Interest Cover
EBITDA divided by interest expense for the year ended 31 December 2001 was 5.5

compared to 4.5 in 2000, mainly due to a decrease in interest expense from HK$ 1,157
million in 2000 to HK$690 million in 2001.
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Credit Ratings

The Company was assigned investment grade long term credit rating of Baa2 and
BBB- by Moody’s Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s respectively. The credit
outlook for both ratings are stable, reflecting Ciric Pacific’s strong financial profile

including low leverage, diversified business and strong cashflow.
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Corporate Governance

Ciric Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate governance and first
class business practices extending beyond compliance with the mandatory
requirements such as that of the Companies Ordinance, accounting standards and the

Stock Exchange.

The Board

The Board currently comprises twelve executive and seven non-executive directors of
whom six are “independent” under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules. In 2001 the
Board met four times to review the financial and operating performance of the Group
and cach business, and approve future strategy. Attendance at the meeting was over
84%. The Board has established an Executive Committee of executive directors and
senior managers who meet monthly to review and make decisions on financial and

operational matters.

System of Internal Control
The Board recognizes its responsibility for ensuring prompt and transparent reporting

and full disclosure of information to the public and investors at large.

The accounting system and internal controls of the Group are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against losses from unauthorized use
or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with management
authorization, the financial records are reliable and financial statements show a true

and fair view of the business.

The Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in 1995 comprising three
independent non-executive directors. It met four times in 2001, together with
management and auditors, both internal and external, to review audit reports and
assure the completeness and accuracy of the Group’s interim and final financial
statements. The Audit Committee reviews the system of internal controls throughout

the Group, including adherence to various Codes described below.
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External Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed by the shareholders as the Ciric Pacific’s
statutory auditor and their report is on pages 124 to 125. Hk$5 million was charged to
the account for their statutory audit and tax services. Another HK$ 1 million was also
charged for special review, fund raising documentation and completion audits in

connection with acquisitions during the financial year.

Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department supports management by carrying out a
systematic review of all business operations over a period that is determined after an
assessment of the risks involved. The audit plan is endorsed by the Audit Committee
annually. The Group Internal Auditor has unrestricted access to all parts of the
business, and direct access to any level of management including the Chairman, or the

Chairman of the Audit Committee as he considers necessary.

Codes

To ensure the highest standard of integrity in our businesses, in 1995 the Group
adopted a Code of Conduct defining the ethical standards expected of all employees,
and the Group’s non-discriminatory employment practices. Training courses on the
Code are held regularly for employees and the Audit Committee receives a report on

the operation of the Code every year.

The Group has issued its own Code for Securities Transactions by Directors that
follows the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong’s Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Exchange’s Listing
Rules. Throughout 2001 the Group has complied with the Code of Best Practice
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Group has endorsed the guide to good employment practices issued by the
Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong to promote good and responsible

employment standards.

Connected Transactions

Ciric Pacific Ltd entered into two transactions which required independent
shareholders” approval with China International Trust & Investment Corporation
Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited - a connected person under the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules - in 2001 and January 2002. Full details are contained in the circulars
issued at that time and the related press announcements can be retrieved on

www.citicpacific.com. In each case a committee consisting of
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Corporate Governance

independent non-executive directors was appointed to advise shareholders - advised by
an independent financial adviser - on the merits of the transactions. The two
transactions were approved by sharcholders after receiving the report of the

independent board committee and independent financial adviser.

Fair Disclosure

Ciric Pacific uses its best endeavors to distribute material information about the Group
simultaneously to all interested parties as widely as possible. When announcements are
made through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange the same information will be on its way
to shareholders, journalists and investment analysts where an e-mail address or fax

number is known.

Crmic Pacific recognizes its responsibility to explain its activities to those with a
legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. Investors are regularly received
and visited to explain the Group’s business. Questions on the company and its
products and services are received from the general public, individual sharcholders and
investment analysts and these are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken to

ensure that no price sensitive information is disclosed.

Information about Ciric Pacific can be found on www.citicpacific.com including

descriptions of each business, copies of all announcements made and Annual Reports

for last three historical years.

Transparency & Disclosure

In November 2001, rating agency Standard & Poor objectively surveyed the level of
transparency and disclosure of companies in Asia Pacific. Citic Pacific was assessed at
level 7 (out of 10) - the highest level achieved by Hong Kong listed companies, which

was also achieved by six other companies.
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Financial Reporting

Ciric Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Hong
Kong accounting standards broadly follow international accounting standards. The
Group adopted new and revised SSAPs which became effective for the current financial
year and has chosen to adopt early Statement of Changes in Equity required in SSAP
No.1 (revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements” and SSAP No.15 (revised)
“Cash Flow Statements”. The changes to the accounting policies and their financial

impacts are set out in notes 1(c) and 1(j) to the account on pages 69 and 73.

American Depositary Receipt
As a further service to investors a United States American Depositary Receipt (ADR)
program was established in January 2002 providing an additional method of investing

in the ordinary shares of Citic Pacific. The stock code is cpey.
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Directors and Senior Managers

Executive Directors

Larry Yung Chi Kin, aged 60, has been the Chairman of Citic Pacific Limited (“Crric
Pacific”) since 1990. Mr Yung is also the Vice Chairman and Managing Director of
China International Trust & Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
(“Cimic HK”) and an Executive Director of China International Trust and Investment
Corporation (“Crtic”). He worked for 14 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in
the People’s Republic of China (“prc”) before coming to Hong Kong in 1978, and had
extensive management experience before establishing Crtic nk in 1987. Mr Yung is a
Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club (“Jockey Club”).

Henry Fan Hung Ling, aged 53, is the Managing Director of Citic Pacific. He is a
Deputy Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (“Cathay”), a director of Hong
Kong Dragon Airlines Limited (“Dragonair”) as well as a Deputy Managing Director
of Crmic k. He is also a non-executive director of the Securities and Futures
Commission. Before joining Ciric vK in 1987, Mr Fan has held senior management

positions and also practised law as a barrister. He joined Ciric Pacific in 1990.

Vernon Francis Moore, aged 55, is a Deputy Managing Director and the Group Chief
Financial Officer of Crmic Pacific. He is a director of Cathay and cLp Holdings Limited
(“crr Holdings™) and the Chairman of the New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Limited
(“nukre”), Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Company Limited
(“nxraMc”) and the Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (“wnt”). Mr Moore is
an Executive Director of Ciric 1K which he joined in 1987 after holding senior
management positions with a number of financial institutions. He joined Ciric Pacific

in 1990.

Peter Lee Chung Hing, aged 48, is a Deputy Managing Director of Ciric Pacific and
the Vice Chairman of Citic Guoan Co., Ltd. (“Citic Guoan”). He is also a director of
other Group companies concerned with industrial and communications projects and
trading businesses in Hong Kong and the pre. Before joining Ciric nk in 1988, Mr Lee
was with major banking and shipping groups in Hong Kong. He joined Crtic Pacific in
1990 and joined the Board in 1991.
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Norman Yuen Kee Tong, aged 53, joined Crric Pacific as a Deputy Managing
Director in April 2001. Mr Yuen is the Chairman of Ciric Pacific Communications
Limited (“cpc”). He is also the corporate representative of Citic Pacific on the Board
of Companhia de Telecomunicacoes de Macau s.A.R.L., a director of Hong Kong Resort
Company Limited (“HK Resort”) and other Group companies concerned with
communications projects. Prior to joining Crric Pacific, Mr Yuen was the deputy chief
executive officer of Pacific Century CyberWorks Limited and had extensive experience
in the telecommunications business. He serves on several public bodies and advisory
committees, including the Immigration Tribunal, Registration of Persons Tribunal,
Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation and the Trade

Development Council.

Robert Ernest Adams, aged 58, has been an Executive Director of Crtic Pacific since
1992. He is a director of Cathay, Dragonair, Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals Limited
and Ls¢ Lufthansa Service Hong Kong Limited. Before joining Crtic Pacific in 1992,
Mr Adams worked in Hong Kong in the management consulting and banking
industries, and is a past Chairman of the American Chamber of Commerce in

Hong Kong.

Zhang Yichen, aged 38, joined Ciric Pacific as Executive Director in March 2000. He
is also the President of cpc and a director of Citic Guoan. Prior to joining Citic: Pacific,
Mr Zhang was a Managing Director at Merrill Lynch, and had extensive experience in
the investment banking industry in both the United States and the Greater China
Region.

Yao Jinrong, aged 62, has been an Executive Director of Citic Pacific since March
2000. He is the Managing Director of Crric Pacific China Holdings Limited. He had
served in China’s non-governmental friendship organizations for more than 20 years
before he joined Ciric in early 1985. Having joined Citic Group, he once served as
excecutive secretary to Citic’s former Chairman Mr Rong Yiren and concurrently
director of Ciric’s general office. From 1992 to 2000, he was President of China
International Economic Consultants Co., Ltd. (“ciic”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Crtic. He is now Chairman of citc. Since 1995 to 2000, he was an Executive Director

and Vice President of Citic, and is now a director of CITIC.
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Directors and Senior Managers

Chang Zhenming, aged 45, has been an Executive Director of Ciric Pacific since
March 2000. He joined Ciric in 1983 and had extensive experience in finance,
banking and securities business. Mr Chang is also an Executive Director and Vice
President of Citic, President and Chief Executive Officer of Citic Ka Wah Bank
Limited, the Chairman of Citic Securities Co., Ltd. and a director of Citic oK. He is
also the Chairman of The Securities Association of China. Formerly, he was a Vice

President of Citic Industrial Bank.

LiShilin, aged 52, has been an Executive Director of Crtic Pacific since March 2000.

He is also an Executive Director and a Vice President of Citic. He took the position of

Chairman of Citic Guoan Group in 1997. Mr Li’s current posts also include director of

China United Telecommunications Corporation, Chairman of Citic Guoan, Chairman
of Xin De Telecom International Ventures Co., Ltd., Chairman of Citic Guoan
Information Industry Co., Ltd., Chairman of Citic Ocean Helicopters Co., Ltd., Vice
Chairman of the Beijing Football Association and Vice Chairman of the Beijing Golf

Association.

Carl Yung Ming Jie, aged 33, has been an Executive Director of Crtic Pacific since
March 2000. He is a director of Cathay and other Group companies concerned with
infrastructure and industrial projects in the pre. He joined Cric Pacific in 1993. He is
the son of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Liu Jifu, aged 58, joined Crmic Pacific as Executive Director in April 2001. He is also
adirector of Ciric HK. Before joining Citic HK in 2000, Mr Liu had worked with the
Financial and Economics Research Institute in the China Academy of Social Sciences
for 5 years. After 1983, he served as an Executive Director of China Everbright Group
Limited, the Chairman of China Everbright Travel Inc and China piN¢HE Import &
Export Co., Ltd.

Non-Executive Directors

Willie Chang, aged 58, has been a director of Ciric Pacific since 1987. He is the
senior partner of Willie Chang & Co., Solicitors, with over 32 years’ experience in
legal practice, including as a partner of Johnson, Stokes and Master. Mr Chang is a

member of the Board’s Audit Committee.
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Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, aged 51, joined the Board of Crric Pacific in 1992. He is a
director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, an Executive Director of Honorway
Investments Limited (“Honorway”) and Tak Hung (Holding) Company Limited (“Tak
Hung”). He is the brother of Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong.

Alexander Reid Hamilton, aged 60, has been a director of Ciric Pacific since May
1994. He was a partner of Price Waterhouse with which he practised for 16 years. He
is a Non-Executive Director of a number of Hong Kong companies including cosco
Pacific Limited, Shangri-La Asia Limited, Esprit Holdings Limited and pss Kwong On
Bank Ltd. Mr Hamilton is Chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee.

Hansen Loh Chung Hon, aged 64, joined the Board of Citic Pacific in May 1994. He
is the Managing Director of Wyler Textiles, Limited, Chairman of Farrington
American Express Travel Services Limited and a non-executive director of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and cLp Holdings. Mr Loh is a

member of the Board’s Audit Committee.

Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 46, has been a director of Crtic Pacific since May
1994. He is an Executive Director of Honorway and Tak Hung. He is also a director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Company
Limited, and a number of other quoted companies. He is the brother of Mr Hamilton
Ho Hau Hay.

Chau Cham Son, aged 69, joined the Board of Crric Pacific in June 1995. He is a
director of China Overseas Land & Investment Limited and other Hong Kong
companies. He has 30 years” experience in the field of town planning, building and
land development in Hong Kong including being the first Director of Buildings and

Lands with the Hong Kong Government. He is a Steward of Jockey Club.

André Desmarais, aged 45, joined the Board of Crric Pacific in December 1997. He
is the President and Co-Chief Executive Officer of Power Corporation of Canada. He is
also a member of the Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisers of The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and member of the Citic

International Advisory Council.
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Directors and Senior Managers

Senior Managers

Bi Yupu, aged 60, is the General Manager of the Power Project Department of Ciric
Pacific. He is a Deputy Managing Director of Citic HK and has been the chief
representative of Crric Pacific’s Beijing Office since 7 December 1993. Before joining
the Crric Group in 1987, he worked for 20 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in
the prC as a senior engineer and deputy director of North China Electric Power

Research Institute. He joined Ciric Pacific in 1993.

Chau Chi Yin, aged 46, is Director, Group Financial Control of the Ciric. Pacific
Group. He is a director of Hk Resort and other Group companies concerned with
industrial projects in the pre. He joined Crmic K in 1987 after experience in public
accounting and in financial management with a major Hong Kong listed company. He
joined Ciric Pacific in March 1990.

Leslie Chang Li Hsien, aged 47, is Director, Group Finance. He is a director of Ciric
Guoan, HKtHMC and wHT. Before joining Crtic Pacific in 1994, he was a partner at KPMG
Peat Marwick specializing in the financial services industry. He was also the Director

of Chinese Practice of the firm in the United States.

Frances Yung Ming Fong, aged 30, is Director, Technology Development of Citic
Pacific and Executive Vice-President, Project Development of cpc. She joined Crric
Pacific in 1995 and is responsible for the development of technology-based projects.
She is a director of NHKTC and other Group companies concerned with communications

projects. She is the daughter of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Milton Law Ming To, aged 38, is Director, Business Development. He is a director of
Dragonair, NHKTC, WHT, HKTHMC and other Group companies concerned with
infrastructure, environment, trading and industrial projects in Hong Kong and the prc.

Before joining Citic Pacific in 1992, he worked in the banking industry.

Polly Lawrence, aged 55, is Director, Group Human Resources and Administration of
the Ciric Pacific Group, responsible for those functions in the Group. She was head of
human resources and communications of a Hong Kong listed company before she

joined Ciric Pacific in 1993.
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Chu Hon Fai, aged 56, is Chief Executive - Trading of the Dah Chong Hong Group.
He has extensive experience in global trading and distribution and is responsible for
the Dah Chong Hong Group’s trading business in Hong Kong, the prc, Singapore,
Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1964 and was Deputy Chief

Executive before his present appointment.

Hui Ying Bun, aged 55, is Chief Executive — Motor of the Dah Chong Hong Group.
His career spans several decades of motor dealership experience and is responsible for
the Dah Chong Hong Group’s motor franchises and ancillary businesses in Hong
Kong, the pre, Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1966

and was Deputy Chief Executive before his present appointment.

Alexander Chan Sing Cheung, aged 57, is an Executive Director and the General
Manager of NtkTC. He joined NHKTC in June 1991 having had extensive experience

previously in the shipping and transportation industries.

Peter Chan Kwong Choi, aged 38, is a director of Citic Telecom 1616 Limited and its
group companies. Before joining Ciric Pacific in May 2000, he was a director of

Telecom 1616 Limited with extensive experience in the telecommunications industry.

Glenn Robert Sturrock Smith, aged 49, is the Chief Executive of Sims Trading
Company Limited and Chairman of the Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution Co., Ltd. He
has had many years of experience in the marketing and distribution of consumer

products with a listed company in Hong Kong before joining Ciric Pacific in 2001.

Aaron Wong Ha Hang, aged 43, is General Manager, Projects of the Property
Department of Citic Pacific. He is an Executive Director of Hk Resort, a director of
NHKTC and other Group companies concerned with property and environmental
projects in Hong Kong. He worked for an international consulting firm in the United

Kingdom and in Hong Kong for many years before he joined the Group in 1996.

Cindy Kwan Kit Ying, aged 39, is General Manager — Sales & Marketing of the
Property Department of Ciric Pacific. She had broad experience in property sales,

marketing, and leasing before joining the Group in 1996.

Stephen Ho Wai Chung, aged 43, is the Chief Executive Officer of cpenet Hong
Kong Limited and Executive Vice-President, Operations of cpc. He joined Crric Pacific

in 2001 after 19 years of experience in the telecommunications industry.
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Human Resources ANER

As at the end of December 2001, the Group employed 11,733 people (2000:11,354)  #E-FEF—F+ZHIK - AEEILEHA

in its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiary companies worldwide. TILT33 A (ZFTETAE 11,354 N) > 2
The two main areas of concentration are in Hong Kong employing 4,379 (2000: AR TR T 75 A0 0 B FC A 4 o ) 232
4.,236) and in the prc employing 7,126 (2000: 6,877). Another 228 (2000: 241) are B2 Rl o Fits K w1 Ly i ) - 2248 i
employed in subsidiaries in Japan, Singapore and Canada. The Group’s headcount JrilER B T4.379 N (ZEEEE 4236
increased due to acquisitions during the year. N RT126 N (ZEEFEE L 687TN)

HER 228 N (ZFFELAE - 241 N) A4
ZARTY BAS ~ Bl B & K A Bt g 2 ] o
BT NSO o D A I A A A T
Z I -

Human Resources Management

The Group recognizes and respects each individual’s rights and adopts non-
discriminatory employment policies giving equal opportunities to qualified candidates.
Ciric Pacific strives to be consistent and fair in administering its human resources
management practices to the mutual benefit of its employees and the Group. Our Code ~ ANEREE

of Conduct covers many aspects of business ethics, including relations with suppliers A R ) e B E I KER - I PR A5 (R
and customers and employees in terms of employment practices. Everyone workingon — EUR » % T A £ &4 A 1758 it 3 1
the affairs of the Group is required to follow this Code and heads of business unitsare € o FERE IR T —H LA EZ AT

charged with the responsibility of disseminating the Group’s requirements to the EIRE I > SRR A TR RS
people concerned. An explanation of the contents of the Code is included in the fi o SR M 2 AT R AT B e R S
induction of new employees and refresher courses conducted by internal or external 77 T 0 > L rh R AR LA 7 SR A B
speakers are arranged for employees from time to time. Any violation or non- 17 > PALRB THBESRST o Ay AR E BT
compliance of the Code is subject to established disciplinary procedure or actions as RS L) 1UNGE S TN P b S
appropriate. ZOR AR L A A ) A B L R

ASEBATHLR o 7RI F A0 A2 C B 15 HT
B TABEHRAEN > MAEB IR B T4
Y oA 55 3 B i O ARl A B 2 s
Al o LA S ORI %P R - i E
FACHE 2 S AR B 2 AT B g e -

Employee Compensation

The Group aims to attract, retain and motivate employees who have the relevant skills,
knowledge and abilities to develop, support and sustain the continued success of the
Group. On an annual basis, CiTic Pacific reviews the cash compensation and benefits

programme provided for its employees to ensure that the overall compensation is

internally equitable and in line with local norms and industry practice. Employees of BT HM

the Group gave consent at the end of 2001 to revise the bonus arrangement from a ARSI WG]~ PR R EL A B 4
fixed sum to a performance based bonus award dependent on Group results and fE ~ FIskLAESTI AT DI ~ SR E
individual employee performance. Shareholders approved a share option scheme for BALEI R - PERESFEIME AT
the Group’s employees in May 2000 and details are given on page 60. Financial (M S ) o DA R S P o 56
information on Directors” emoluments can be found on page 84. 5B N 1 S M B D 2547 S ]
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H o HHME 2 BTN 84 H -
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Retirement Benefits

The Ciric Group Retirement Plan (“orso Plan”) provides retirement benefits for
employees of the Group and its subsidiaries and associates. The Plan is a defined
contribution scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and has obtained an exemption certificate having satisfied the requirements
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. nssc Trustee (Hong Kong)
Limited is Trustee of the orso Plan, who in turn appointed the investment manager and
plan administrator to manage the Plan in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules.
Employees are offered a choice of investments and the Trustee issues statements to

members of the Plan twice a year.

A Ciric Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“mpr Scheme™) offers a choice to
employees who opt not to join the orso Plan. The Hang Seng Bank is the service

provider of the MpF Scheme.

Further details on these principal schemes are given in the Notes to the Accounts on

page 85.

Training & Development

Crmic Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organizational environment conducive
to each individual’s development. Employees are encouraged to commit to continuous
improvement by taking responsibility for their own learning and self-development.
Seminars and courses organized by professional institutions are sponsored by the
Group to assist employees to improve their current job performance. In-house training
for all levels of employees is organized regularly on product knowledge and skills
training. Where applicable, the Group arranges external service providers to conduct
customized training programmes on specific subjects such as managerial development

and updates on new technology.

Ciric Pacific also believes in investing in our future generation. The Group has putin
place various management trainee and apprentice training programmes to foster

growth and provide opportunities for the younger members of society.
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In the Community HERHE

The Group and its employees support the local communities it operates in. As in the
past many years, the Group supports charitable work and the promotion of education,
environmental protection, sports, culture and the arts by sponsoring many activities in
Hong Kong, China, and overseas. The Salvation Army, Mother’s Choice, and the
Worldwide Fund for Nature are some of the organizations the Group associated with.
Most notably is the Community Chest of Hong Kong to which Ciric Pacific and its
subsidiary companies have been long term supporters by making donations and
participating in the fund raising activities. As a regular donor to the Red Cross, the
Group continues to encourage its employees to respond to its appeals and campaigns.
Employees of the Group have also expressed interest in the Volunteer Movement
organized by the Social Welfare Department of the Hong Kong sar Government to

contribute their free time and service to society.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report for the year
ended 31 December 2001.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies and the
principal activities of its subsidiary companies and associated companies and their
major areas of operation are set out in the Review of Citic Pacific’s Businesses on

pages 6 to 21.

Dividends

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.20 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2001 which was paid on 21 September 2001. The Directors
recommended, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.60 per share in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2001 payable on 15 May 2002 to sharcholders on the
Register of Members at the close of business on 9 May 2002.

Reserves
The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves during the year are set out

in note 22 to the accounts.

Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to Hk$ 11 million.

Fixed Assets

Movements of fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the accounts.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales with the Group’s suppliers and customers are as

FREFRHLIERS
AL MR N E P 2 AR K T

follows: SRHEIT
2001 2000
% %
Purchases i E
— the largest supplier 7 12 O]
— five largest suppliers combined 20 27 - IR ARt

The aggregate percentage of sales to the Group’s five largest customers is less than

30%.

No Directors, their associates or sharcholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) were interested at any

time in the year in the above suppliers or customers.

Subsidiary Companies
The names of the principal subsidiary companies, their principal places of operation,
their countries of incorporation and particulars of their issued share capital are set out

in note 32 to the accounts.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold us$ 100 million aggregate
principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due 2006 (“Senior Notes”) to financial
institutions pursuant to note purchase agreements dated 15 February 1996. All of the

Senior Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

On 20 August 1997, the Company issued and sold Japanese Yen 9.5 billion floating
rate bond due 2002 (“Yen Bond”), for general working capital purposes, to an investor
pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 15 August 1997. All of the Yen Bond

remained outstanding at the end of the year.

AEBIRER 2GS E T LRSI
T 30% °

HHEH - HBFRA LSRR ORI P o
AR FBA BB %E ) FAAF AL TS I
AT E A (R R o AT AT AR

HEBAE

FEME AR 4H  LETREE - 5
T BCSr $ 5 7 B 34T A 2 w1 A M Y
iE32e

BITREES

M= NNAEZATLR > ARFRRE—
NAEZ A+ H 2 R E Wk > AT R
HEAREIEERITLTIT%Z T (5
1R1) TR 25 2R T T NE
W) A SR AR A I B 79 R R 8 5
S

R=NEEAT = H > AARRE—
LA I 2 iR - 317 b
HEA+HEEAEZEEESE ([HEMK
%)) FoAEE > UME-REEES - &
% HEEI R T RN 2 E
TSR IR AR R A et B B ] -

51

(7]
[
(15
o
o
w
19
>
(15
o
[
=)
-
<
[
(7]

E ] &

&

7




Directors’ Report

On 1 June 2001, Crtic Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued and sold a total of us$4:50 million principal amount of 7.625%

guaranteed notes due 2011 (“Guaranteed Notes™) for refinancing the indebtedness of

the Company and for general corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the
purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed

Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies have issued any

debt securities.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 23 to the accounts.

Directors

The Directors in office during the financial year ended 31 December 2001 were:

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin

Mr Henry Fan Hung Ling
Mr Vernon Francis Moore
Mr Peter Lee Chung Hing
Mr Norman Yuen Kee Tong
Mr Robert Ernest Adams
Mr Zhang Yichen

Mr Yao Jinrong

(appointed on 1 April 2001)

Mr Chang Zhenming

Mr Li Shilin

Mr Carl Yung Ming Jie

Mr Liu Jifu

Mr Willie Chang

Mr Hamilton Ho Hau Hay
Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton
Mr Hansen Loh Chung Hon
Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong
Mr Chau Cham Son

Mr André Desmarais

(appointed on 1 April 2001)
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Pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New Articles of Association of the Company, Messrs
Vernon Francis Moore, Robert Ernest Adams, Zhang Yichen, Yao Jinrong, Chang
Zhenming and Norman Ho Hau Chong shall retire by rotation in the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting and all, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors may be found on pages 40 to 4.3.

Management Contract

The Company entered into a management agreement with China International Trust &
Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“Ciric 1K) on 11 April
1991 but with retrospective effect from 1 March 1990 in which Citic HK agreed to
provide management services to the Company and its subsidiary companies for a
management fee calculated on a cost basis to CiTic HK payable quarterly in arrears. The
management agreement is terminable by two months’ notice by either party. Messrs
Larry Yung Chi Kin, Henry Fan Hung Ling, Vernon Francis Moore, Chang Zhenming
and Liu Jifu had indirect interests in the management agreement as they are directors
of Crtic HK. A copy of the management agreement will be available for inspection at the

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 9 May 2002.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

On 12 June 2001, an agreement (“Lucky Zone Agreement”) which was subsisting as
at 31 December 2001 was entered into between Crtic Pacific Communications
Limited (“cpc”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the purchaser and Mr
Larry Yung Chi Kin (“Mr Yung”), a director of the Company, as the seller pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase from Mr Yung his 20% interest in Lucky Zone
(“Lucky Zone”) at the consideration of HK$319,003.573.11. Lucky
Zone is the developer of a fixed optical fibre network in the prc.

Enterprises Inc.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors of the Company has or at any time during the
year had, an interest which is or was material, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiary companies, which was significant in
relation to the business of the Company, and which was subsisting at the end of the

year or which had subsisted at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) are as follows:

1. Pursuant to the agreement dated 9 October 1996 made between the Company,
Cimic vk, Kerry Trading Co. Limited, The Development Bank of Singapore Limited
(collectively “the Parties”) and Cheer First Limited (“Cheer First”), the Parties being
the shareholders of Cheer First agreed to make loans to Cheer First for providing loan
finance to Goldon Investment Limited which holds Ciric Tower. Citic HK being a
substantial sharcholder of the Company and regarded as its connected person holds
25% interest in Cheer First. The loan was made on normal commercial terms and in
proportion to each party’s shareholding in Cheer First. It was with no fixed repayment
date and was interest bearing at the rate per annum equivalent to Hong Kong Inter-
Bank Offered Rate. As at 31 December 2001, the amount of shareholders’ loan due by
Cheer First to the Company was HK$2,187 million.

2. Pursuant to the agreements dated 8 November 2000 entered into between China
International Trust and Investment Corporation (“Citic Beijing”) and Glamorous Way
Enterprises Ltd. (“Glamorous Way”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Glamorous Way agreed to acquire from Crtic Beijing a 50% interest in Ciric Guoan
Co., Ltd. (“Guoan”) for a total investment amount of RMB 1,800 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$ 1,692 million). Out of the total investment amount, kM1,200
million was for acquiring the existing assets of Guoan whereas RMB600 million was in
the form of an interest-bearing loan from Glamorous Way to Citic Beijing. Ciric
Beijing agreed that within 360 days of the date of completion of the investment,
Glamorous Way would have the priority to select telecommunications projects and
Crric Beijing would inject such selected projects into Guoan. Any capital contribution
required from Glamorous Way as a result of the injection of such selected projects
would be set off against the loan amount. As no projects were injected into Guoan
during the aforesaid period, Crric Beijing had repaid the loan with accrued interest to

the Company on 18 December 2001.
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3. On 12 June 2001, cpc entered into the Lucky Zone Agreement with Mr Yung.
The consideration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations and was based on the
investment cost of Mr Yung in First Honour Investments Ltd., being the company
holding the 20% interest in Lucky Zone. Mr Yung is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of his being a substantial shareholder and director of the Company.
Lucky Zone and its subsidiaries were initially owned by the Company, Citic Beijing
and Mr Yung in the proportions 60/20/20. Ciric Beijing is a substantial shareholder
of the Company. After the aforesaid acquisition, Lucky Zone and its subsidiaries were
owned by the Company and Ciric Beijing in the proportions 80/20. From time to time
during the year, the Company provided finance to Lucky Zone and its subsidiaries by
way of shareholders’ loan or corporate guarantee. The shareholders’ loan was made in
proportion to the Company’s sharcholdings in such companies, with no fixed
repayment date and was non-interest bearing. The guarantee given by the Company
was a several guarantee proportional to the Company’s shareholdings in such
companies. As at 31 December 2001, the amount of sharcholders” loan due by Lucky
Zone and its subsidiaries to the Company was Hk$ 1,491 million whereas the
guarantees executed by the Company to secure the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries of Lucky Zone were rMB424 million and us$48.4 million. In connection
with the aforesaid acquisition, the Company has also executed a guarantee up to 80%
of the liability of one of the subsidiaries of Lucky Zone under a lease agreement for

leasing certain equipment at the contract sum of approximately us$ 15.5 million.

4. From time to time during the year, the Group executed guarantees to banks to
secure the facilities granted to Shanghai pcr Jiangnanfeng Co., Ltd. (“Jiangnanfeng™).,
a company engaged in the production and selling of chickens and related food
products, as its general working capital. Jiangnanfeng is 76.77% owned by Regal
Heights Limited (“Regal Heights”, a 60% subsidiary of Dah Chong Hong Holdings
Limited) with the remaining interest held by individual third parties which are
connected to the Group by virtue only of their substantial sharcholding in
Jiangnanfeng. As at 31 December 2001, total facilities granted to Jiangnanfeng was
rMB72 million secured by corporate guarantees given by Dah Chong Hong Group, in
turn the 40% partner in Regal Heights shared 40% of such liabilities by giving
irrevocable letters of credit issued by a bank in favour of Dah Chong Hong Group.
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Directors’ Report

5. During the year ended 31 December 2001, H' {5 48 %5 & 3 A7 BR A 7 (< 5 4
#% ™), awholly owned subsidiary of Citic Beijing, provided management services (“the
Services”) to certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company which were engaged in the
optical fibre network investment. The pre subsidiaries paid for the reasonable costs and
expenses incurred by H7 {5 & %% in relation to the provision of the Services. Such
payment was calculated on the actual cost basis. For the year ended 31 December
2001, the total amount of the Services provided by H 15 #4 4% to the prc subsidiaries

was RMB17.3 million.

An independent committee of the board of Directors (comprising only of independent
non-executive Directors) had reviewed the transactions made during the year ended 31

December 2001 and confirmed that:

- the Services had been entered into by the pre subsidiaries in the ordinary and

usual course of their business;

—  the Services had been entered into on terms that were fair and reasonable so far as

the sharcholders of the Company were concerned;

- the Services had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreement

governing such transactions; and

- the Services had been entered into such that the aggregate amount for the year
ended 31 December 2001 did not exceed 3% of the net tangible asset value of the
Group as disclosed in the Company’s 2000 annual report (“the Services Cap”).

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed to the board of Directors that (a) the
Services had received the approval of the Directors; (b) the Services had been entered
into in accordance with the terms of the agreement relating to the transactions; and (c)

the Services had been entered into such that the Services Cap had not been exceeded.

56

EFERE

5. REZEZZZ-F+ZA=+—HI
RN > PEIE R 2 B MR A R b {E A%
EHARRATR (THEHAR]) AL RIHET 8
M2 BOGAAE A 1 TAR 2 oh B BB 4 ml 42
WA HREs (ARBIMRE ) o 2235 b B
T BRI 3 2 A B RS 1 o £ A A S
PHA BAS R B 5 BRI B UARR L
REE-FF-F+A=tHILFE
P R A 1 25 R O m i A B AR
Ty k2 SR AR — T L =1#0C -

ERAHET 2B LA (REEEIER
EH) CHEMBEE-FLTFT A=t
—HIRAEE RS 2 425 - WD

— AR TS i %A o B 2 R AR
FHE R — B AT

BT T A 7 KT B
AL TR

- BRI AR AT B 2 ) i k2 K
TERT 5 J

- HEmBREE-_ZZ-F+ A=
t—HIFEEZ RSB ABEA AR —FE
FTHEFEERP B ALEBFEREFEZ
3% (MR ERRD) o

AR R Z A ST ) 265 6 R () 1 R RS
CBEHE @ 5 (b) A B RS T3 45 3% 45 &
o Z A B Wl 2 AT 5 B (o)A BRSO
g A s B R o



Directors’ Interests in Securities of the Company EENFATREH2ES

As at 31 December 2001, the following were the interests in shares of the Company or R =ZFZ—F+-H=+—H » REF&H
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section (Peetias) Rl (THesrtEaalip] ) 2290
29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the “spr Ordinance™): AT M 2 B2 MR ek - SR A A

S AR A 2 R AR I T
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Number of Shares ;
Bt W
Personal Corporate Family Other o
interests interests interests interests Total -
PN ik Kk H AR A
Crric Pacific Limited HIERERMRAT
Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 400,381,000 A% fi
Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 43,000,000 &5
Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 3,200,000  SEfEFE
(Note 1)(FF7E 1)
Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 500,000 7B
Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 33,000  Prala
Robert Ernest Adams 550,000 550,000  FE%E
Liu Jifu 40,000 40,000 B il
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000 500,000 1,550,000 P o
(Note 2)(Hf 5% 2)  (Note 2)(Ff &E 2)
André Desmarais 88,8600 100,230,000 100,318,800  f£15 %
(Note 3)(Fff 5F 3)
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited EMZERAT
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 450,000 FE &%
Note [: Deemed interests held by the relevant Director and his family as contingent beneficiaries of a WFEL - A B o 3 R AE 2 — B st 2 k52
discretionary trust. AR 2 At o
Note 2: The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director duplicate each other as the Wit 2 : HREFFA 2B R
500,000 shares are held through a company in which the relevant Director and his family are interested. B 5 []500,000 R O 547738 — [ i o 8 5 RH R %

A2 L A2 i

Note 3: In addition to the aforesaid, the relevant Director is also one of the trustees of a Canadian discretionary

trust which controls Canadian companies which owns 24,000 shares of the Company. Wat3 - b LAEr#A; - HEEEIN S — e
MR AL ZAEAZ — o« GBI FEE B A A o Al
24,000 IRIR 2 MEA L F]
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Directors’ Report

As at 31 December 2001, none of the Directors has any other interests in the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
the sb1 Ordinance) which have been entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 29 of the spr Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Companies.

Substantial Shareholders
As at 31 December 2001, the interests of substantial shareholders, other than the
Directors of the Company, in the equity securities of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 16(1) of the spr Ordinance are as follows:

EFERE

MREFFEFZA=F—H > HEERA
Oy A SSCHAT (A B (G 2 S A8l i
) Z A GBS 27 BT IR
FEHE AR DR OI56 29 WO A 7] F DURAE 28
R AREE o sORAREE b A R LT
A7 50 oy H R HE ST B 20 R AR 2 ) O 52 P
ZATATHARE S -

FERE

REFEFEFZAZ—H o RIEHEE
i BRI 16(1)/ BT RAF 2 B4 1 AR
BERROR (RAAm#EHRRSN AR FIRA
[oeva VUM

Number of Shares
of the Company

Name FRFAZIRGHE LR

Crric Beijing 632,066,285 HfEdLa

CITic HK 632,066,285  Hf5 & il

Heedon Corporation 498,424,285  Heedon Corporation

Honpville Corporation 310,988,221  Honpville Corporation

Rockhampton Investments Limited 292,000,000  Rockhampton Investments Limited

Bloomfield Enterprises Corp 292,000,000  Bloomfield Enterprises Corp

Earnplex Corporation 292,000,000  Earnplex Corporation

Crmic HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through the
following wholly owned subsidiary companies by virtue of section 8(2) of the spi

Ordinance as follows:

Number of Shares of ik $0.40 each

TR R ISE 80 - PR AHWER T
B 2 G MR A F B A AR 2 E '
JBES

Name of Subsidiary Companies of Crric nx IR (B 0 040 T2 IRIPBE T B2 B L A5 B
Affluence Limited 43,266,000  Affluence Limited

Winton Corp 30,718,000  Winton Corp
Westminster Investment Inc 101,960,000  Westminster Investment Inc
Jetway Corp 22,500,000  Jetway Corp

Cordia Corporation 32,258,064 Cordia Corporation
Honpville Corporation 310,988,221  Honpville Corporation
Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000  Hainsworth Limited
Southpoint Enterprises Inc 10,000,000  Southpoint Enterprises Inc
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Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp, Westminster Investment Inc, Jetway Corp,
Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth Limited and Southpoint
Enterprises Inc holds the shares of the Company beneficially. Accordingly, Honpyville

Corporation is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ciric Beijing is the direct holding company of Ciric HK. Citic HK is the direct holding
company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited, Affluence Limited and
Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation is the direct holding company of
Winton Corp, Westminster Investment Inc, Jetway Corp, Kotron Company Ltd and
Honpville Corporation and Kotron Company Ltd is the direct holding company of
Cordia Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company of
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of Ciric Beijing in the Company
duplicate the interests of Citic HK in the Company. The interests of CiTiC HK in the
Company duplicate the interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company
duplicate the interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Barnsley Investments Limited in the
Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary company as
described above and the interests of Kotron Company Ltd in the Company duplicate

the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary company as described above.

Rockhampton Investments Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary company of
Bloomfield Enterprises Corp, which in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary company of
Earnplex Corporation. Accordingly, the interests of Earnplex Corporation duplicate
the interests in the Company of its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as
described above. Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin is the owner of the entire issued share capital
of Earnplex Corporation. The interests in the Company of Rockhampton Investments
Limited represent part of the corporate interests of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin as

mentioned in the above section of “Directors’ Interests in Securities of the Company™.

Affluence Limited * Winton Corp » Westminster

Investment  Inc ~ Jetway  Corp ~ Cordia

Corporation > Honpville Corporation »
Hainsworth Limited 5 Southpoint Enterprises Inc
SMEGFEAALFZBR o W
Honpville  Corporation JRZA A/ 7] 2 F &

JBER -

FEIRE PRS2 BIRERAR - PF
L5 Heedon

Limited > Affluence

Corporation ~ Hainsworth
Limited & Barnsley
Investments Limited 2 EH &2 7 © Heedon
Corporation % Winton ~ Corp * Westminster
Investment Inc > Jetway Corp ~ Kotron Company
Ltd & Honpville Corporation 2 EL#HE /A ] »
fi Kotron Company Ltd 4 Cordia Corporation
Z HEFER A F] © Barnsley
Limited %4 Southpoint Enterprises Inc 2 EL4%4%
AR o Bt > PRI A w2 HE i B
PERERALT 2R EE « PEEFER
AR 2 HE AR B b A A L R A
Z W2 AU A B 2 HE 4R BB o Heedon
Corporation J& A2 7] 2 i f BUH 3k i f1 B
2 SR HE A 2 W 2 ) A AR 2 v 2 HE i
# o Barnsley Investments Limited A AT 2
e SELHL 0B PR AT 2 B 2w A )
Z fE4i g8 > T Kotron Company Lid JAZAZ
w2 M ) B b A A 2 WP 2 R R
ARTZ A A -

Investments

Rockhampton Investments Limited J3 Bloomfield
Enterprises Corp Z 2 &M AR » BT
Earnplex  Corporation Z 4 &K@/ 7 o
It > Farnplex Corporation i 4%/ 7 .2 i 45 8
HL bRl E e M P 2 R A R A
Z M4 BB o 5 Y5 4 Y Barnplex
Corporation 2 ¥ & AT A Z BEA A ©

Rockhampton Investments Limited A 44 7 2
M)y BAlt [SEFRA LA RIS < e ] —
HIT AR (T 2 R R 2 e

59

(7]
[
(15
o
o
w
19
>
(15
o
[
=)
-
<
[
(7]

EE R &




Directors’ Report

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
During the year ended 31 December 2001, the Company made the following
repurchases of its own shares on the Stock Exchange for the purpose of enhancing its

earnings per share:

EFERE

BE - HEmEDkG
REE-EE A=t HIEFE
AT RIS P I A B 22 e Ay > #E LR
ARG - FEIAIT

Price Per Share Aggregate
A1 Price Paid
Number of Shares Highest Lowest EfHE 1% AR5
Repurchased B AL HKS million
Month/Year R H ks #HT nk$ B HT &L A
September 2001 6,220,000 15.90 13.15 88 ZFEEFE—FIA

These repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The
premium payable on repurchase was charged against retained profit. An amount
equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled of HK$2 million was transferred

from retained profit to capital redemption reserve.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31 December
2001 and the Company has not redeemed any ofits shares during the year ended 31
December 2001.

Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2001, there were no service contracts which were not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation) between any company in the Group and any Director

proposed for re-clection at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Arrangements for Acquisition of Shares or Debentures

The Company adopted the Ciric Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (“the Plan”) on 31
May 2000, pursuant to which the Board may invite selected Employees (as defined in
the rules of the Plan) to subscribe for options over the Company’s shares on payment of
HK$ 1 per acceptance of such invitation. The subscription price is to be determined by
the Board and will not be lower than 100% of the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
(which is deemed to be the date of the offer) on which there were dealings in the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. No such invitation has been made as at 31
December 2001.
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Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies a party or parties to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of

the Company or any other body corporate.

Other Matters
The “Subsequent Events” as set out in note 29 to the accounts on pages 105 to 106
may be material for the appreciation of the state of the Company’s affairs by its

members.

Auditors
The accounts for the year have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall

retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-appointment.

Corporate Governance
During the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set

out in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board,
Larry Yung Chi Kin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2002
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account Za1EER

Jor the year ended 31 December 2001 WEZERT A A = HIEFE
Note

in uK$ million i 2001 2000 A e et

Turnover 9 17,251 16,044  Z¥EH

Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 2,132 2,481 GEERRH

Share of Profits less Losses of

Associated Companies 5 947 1,764  FRGEE A SinfliREsE
Net Finance Charges 4 (504) (614) MBXHZFEHE
Profit before Taxation 2,575 3.631  BEiwEn&F
Taxation 6 (306) (229) HHIE
Profit for the Year 2,269 3,402  FRigF
Minority Interests (159) (111)  DEMEFRES
Profit Attributable to Shareholders 7 2,110 3.291 IR
Dividends 8 (1,753) (1.871) KRB
Transfer to Reserves 22 (6) (4) BARE
Earnings per Share (Hk$) 9 0.96 1.49 SkEH (BHT)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2001

BB A S H A

Note
in uKk$ million W&t 2001 2000 UM E B e
Fixed Assets 12 14,702 13,433 BETEE
Associated Companies 14 25,027 25,434 BEAT
Investments 16 8,449 9,479 &
Goodwill 15 353 - BE
Current Assets RENEE
Amount due from a substantial shareholder 17 - 567 FEBHRKASH
Properties held for sale 12 345 341 (Gl RUES
Inventories 18 1,799 1,521 peaty
Listed investment 2,189 3,144 L
Debtors, accounts receivable, JRENSCHETE ~ REMCIR R
deposits and prepayments 19 3,330 2,613 fiee RN R0R
Cash and bank deposits 4,631 5,201 B @ KA
12,294 13,387
Current Liabilities REEE
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts SRITER - HAER KB
— secured 72 261 — A
—unsecured 2,158 2,491 — LA
Creditors, accounts payable, FEATHRIA - REATHRAR -
deposits and accruals 20 2,423 2,487 Fi e e R
Provision for taxation 141 119 Pl JE e A
4,794 5,358
Net Current Assets 7,500 8,029 FREBEE
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 56,031 56,375 HEERRHER
Long Term Borrowings 23 (12,409) (12,957) REIERR
Deferred Taxation 24 (215) (237) BERIE
25 43,407 43,181
Financed by: BB
Share Capital 21 876 878 &K
Reserves 22 39,447 38,999 fH#iE
Proposed Dividend 1,314 1,427 BB
Shareholders’ Funds 41,637 41,304 BEEE
Minority Interests 1,770 1.877  DEBRFEER
43,407 43,181
Larry Yung Chi Kin Direcor HER £
Henry Fan Hung Ling Direcior TBsE FF
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BERER

Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2001

CEF LS IR

Note
in uK$ million i 2001 2000 A e et
Fixed Assets 12 58 54 BEIEEE
Subsidiary Companies 13 40,995 42,384 KBAT
Associated Companies 14 2,801 3,452 HEAT
Current Assets RENEE
Debtors, accounts receivable, JRENSCHETE ~ EMCIRR
deposits and prepayments 19 118 140 Fi e R OR
Cash and bank deposits 2,926 3.596 B @ IR
3,044 3,736
Current Liabilities REBEE
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts AT A E
— unsecured 701 - — AT
Creditors, accounts payable, WEATHRIA ~ HEAT AR ~
deposits and accruals 20 68 143 Fie 4 IR IR
769 143
Net Current Assets 2.275 3,593 BREHEE
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 46,129 49,483 WEERKBHER
Long Term Borrowings 23 (8.051) (11,633) REAER
38,078 37.850
Financed by: BEAR
Share Capital 21 876 878 &
Reserves 22 35,888 35,545 &
Proposed Dividend 1,314 1,427 E@HEE
Shareholders’ Funds 38.078 37,850 BHR&EE
Larry Yung Chi Kin Direcor EER

Henry Fan Hung Ling Direcior
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement GEBRERER

Jor the year ended 31 December 2001

= T

in uKk$ million 2001 2000 UM E B e
Cash Flows from Operating Activities HEEBZRERE
Profit from Consolidated Activities after MBREATS 3T B 8RR
Net Finance Charges 1,628 1,867 ZEEEBRT
Net interest expense 449 568 LS PR ST
Income from investments (1,509) (1,700) LIRS En
Depreciation and amortisation 493 452 e B
Amortisation of goodwill 11 - [k s =
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 36 3 B [ S 2 R
Impairment loss of fixed assets 75 - I8 5 B 2 W E 1R
Profit on disposal of investment properties (2) - iR Eid<e/E Faigll
Net loss/(gain) from investments 154 (111) HERE 2 TR (lds)
Provision for diminution in value of unlisted investments - 1 I b RCE YA
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,335 1,080 FKetBEESLEHZEERF
Increase in inventories (33) (96) e
Decrease/ (increase) in debtors, JEMCIRIE ~ FENRHRSX
accounts receivable, e MR
deposits and prepayments 311 (290) W/ (s
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, JERTRRIA ~ BEATHR ~ Ha K
accounts payable, deposits and accruals (443) 326 FEAHRIE GRb) /S
Effect of foreign exchange rates (40) 28 VLR ES 2
Cash Generated from Operations 1,130 1,048 SEEBELEZES
Interest received 248 617 RIS
Interest paid (973) (1,380) EATFLE
Income taxes paid (154) (120) R RET
Net Cash from Operating Activities 251 165 BEEBZHLFHE
Cash Flows from Investing Activities REEBZRERE
Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash and FEARE AR (FuBRAr3 3
cash equivalents acquired) (note a) (594) (1,611) S RAERBA) (it a)
Purchase of additional interests in a subsidiary company (319) (61) T N 6 JB 2 v R 4 2 1 T
Purchase of fixed assets (1.839) (1,639) A T o
Investment in associated companies - (1,131) RIS A F 2 HE
Increase in investments (152) (248) is-pa il
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 41 34 B [ 7 S T A
Proceeds on disposal of interest in an associated company 2 20 B T A ) 2 HE R TS
Proceeds on disposal of investments 1,246 1,770 HEREIS
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a TERRRASELBY
substantial sharcholder 567 (567) (3m)
Decrease in amount due to a previous sharcholder of
a subsidiary company - (45)  XWEARABOR B2 8
BTSN R ZERED
Decrease/ (increase) in loans to associated companies 961 (685) (3 7m)
Dividend income from associated companies 762 738 e A w2 R
Income from investments 1,507 1,562 METERE 5kt
KRB/ (AR #EEH2Z
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities 2,182 (1,863) H&iFE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEBERER

in uK$ million 2001 2000 A E B et
Cash Flows from Financing Activities RERMEZRERE
Repurchase of shares (88) (1,004) I ]
Issue of shares - 4,038 BT
Expenses on issue of shares - (97) AT
New borrowings 6,784 626 e B
Repayment of loans (8.271) (4,053) e
Increase in minority interests 28 443 D BUIBR AR 2 1
Dividends paid (1,866) (1,668) BRI E
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (3.413) (1,715) FARMEZHRLFE
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (980) (3,413) BERERAREZHLFE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 January 4,127 7543 WR—A—-HBZE2RERRE
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes (7) (3) IMBEREHZFE
R+=-B=+—BzHE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31 December 3.140 4,127 RERBE
Analysis of the Balances of Cash and
Cash Equivalents BeRERREEHFEZIH
Cash and bank deposits 4,631 5,201 B4 BARATAR K
SRATREE ~ HAEE R B X
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts (note b) (1,491) (1,074) (B D)
3,140 4,127
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

a Purchase of subsidiary companies

a BAKBAE

invk$ mallion 2001 2000 VLt L R
Net assets acquired WEEFEE
Fixed assets 52 59  EEEE
Investments 1 - #E
Inventories 242 118 #E&
Accounts receivable and prepayments 372 143 MEYCRA R A
Cash and bank deposits 16 17 BE RBRITAFR
Bank overdrafts 9) (7) $|ITEX
Creditors and accrued charges (359) (202)  MEATHETE KA IR
Deferred taxation (4) (1) IELEHIE
Minority interests (1) (2) DEM ARG
310 125
Less: Interest in associated companies - (4) B BB F M
Goodwill 364 1,500  FE
674 1,621
Satisfied by: AT
Cash 601 1,621  Bi&
Accounts payable 73 - HERHERSK
674 1,621
Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents A7 B Bl AR i 2 ) 2 3 S AR TR
in respect of the purchase of subsidiary companies Bl R
kS million 2001 2000  LiEEE BT E
Cash consideration 601 1,621  BefEE
Cash and bank deposits acquired (16) (17)  WEAZ B & RRATHER
Bank overdrafts acquired 9 T WBAZHATIEL
594 1,611

b Reconciliation of the balance of cash and cash equivalents in respect

b BRARTER HOERRE

of bank loans, other loans and overdrafts TS HEFHS T HIE
invk$ mallion 2001 2000 VLt L R
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts 2,230 2,752  SATEH - HAER KB
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts AR AR 2 SRR
over three months to maturity (739) (1,678) HAb SR B
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts within AR H NE 2 SRR
three months to maturity 1,491 1,074 Ho BRI 5
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GEERBER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Jor the year ended 31 December 2001

BEZFFAF T H=A—HIEEE

Not
in uK$ million BﬁEEe 2001 2000 A e et
At 1 January 41,178 38,178 —H—H
Prior Year Adjustments 22 126 62 LEERE
As restated 41,304 38,240 E3I
Goodwill on Consolidation SFERBEXE
Written Off - (L,779)  ZEoEmes
Share of Reserves of Associated
Companies 339 528  FHGEE AT RE
(Deficit)/Surplus on Revaluation
of Properties (157) 211 WREGEEZ (B4 B
Exchange Translation Differences 3) 4 IMEBREER
Reserves Released (2) (460) fEEEIHE
Net Gains/(Losses) Not Recognised
in the Consolidated Profit and KRG EERRER 2K
Loss Account 177 (1,496) (B518) B8
Profit Attributable to Shareholders 2,110 3,291  BREEFEGEF
Dividends 8 (1,866) (1,668) KR
Issues of Shares, Net of Expenses - 3,941 EBETRMRER
Repurchase of Shares (88) (1,004) EBmEIR%H
At 31 December 41,637 41,304 +=HA=+-—H
Representing: & :
At 31 December after Proposed +=B=+—BEitA
Final Dividend 40,323 39,877 BaEKRERE
Proposed Final Dividend 8 1,314 1,427 EEERHERE
41,637 41,304
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Notes to The Accounts AR EPftEE

Jor the year ended 31 December 2001

1 Significant Accounting Policies

a  BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. The recognition of exchange differences on certain long-
term liabilities in Crric Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
(“Cathay Pacific”) does not comply with Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (“ssap”) No. 11 but does comply with International Accounting
Standards (“1as”) and Cathay Pacific’s policy is explained in accounting policy

Note 1p below.

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties and listed investments not held for long term as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The Group adopted new or revised ssaps which became effective for the current
financial year and has chosen to adopt early Statement of Changes in Equity required in
ssaP No. 1 (revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements” and ssap No. 15 (revised)
“Cash Flow Statements”. The changes to the accounting policies and their financial

impacts are set out in the respective accounting policy below.

b BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and all its
subsidiary companies made up to the balance sheet date. The results of subsidiary
companies acquired or disposed of during the year are included as from the effective

dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal respectively.

¢ GOODWILL
Positive goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and associated
companies represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s

share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

— for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is written off to reserves in
the year of acquisition or amortised over a period no longer than its useful life to the

Group.

— for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is amortised on a

straight line basis over its estimated useful life not exceeding 20 years.
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Notes to The Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies conunued
Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and associated
companies represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair value of the

identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the acquisition.

— for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, negative goodwill is credited to the capital

reserve.

— for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, to the extent that negative goodwill
relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses that are identified in the plan of
acquisition and can be measured reliably, it is recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account when the future losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining
negative goodwill, but not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets
acquired, is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account over the weighted
average useful life of those non-monetary assets that are depreciable or amortisable.
Negative goodwill in excess of the fair value of the non-monetary assets acquired is

recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Positive goodwill is stated in the consolidated balance sheet as a separate asset or
included within associated companies at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see Note 1n). Negative goodwill not yet recognised in the

consolidated profit and loss account is shown as a deduction from positive goodwill.

The Group has adopted the transitional provision of ssap No. 30 that goodwill

previously included in reserves need not be restated.

The transitional provision of ssap No. 29 requires intangible assets of Hk$ 3,610 million
previously included in the investment in associated companies, which do not meet the
new definition and recognition criteria of intangible assets, to be re-classified as
goodwill subject to amortisation over a maximum of 20 years. As a result, the Group’s
opening retained profits as at 1 January 2000 and 2001 are reduced by Hk$ 1,064
million and HK$ 1,239 million respectively (see Note 22a), and the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2000 is reduced by HK$ 175 million.

Furthermore, goodwill of Hk$ 1,457 million (see Note 22a) previously written off to
reserves is now reclassified to retained profits under the transitional provision of ssap
No. 30 as the amount is considered impaired because it has no unexpired useful life.

This has no effect on the shareholders’ funds.

70

AR EBisE

1 FESHBR 4

FRISC B 2 ) B Tt w1 2 B e
RS BRSO T R R AR A
P (LR b LS A 2 B

- MEF T A H Z R 2 o
ME - ARESEAEAHRERA

- M= F T A BT 2 ik
ST - A B R R BRI R A B
fetR B szt (BER5 AR B S S FE Ot 3
R o G AE RN SEMLAT ) > IR TH B
TATHERR H A% th BL2 s 18 B S RFAE AR 4 4R 4
FRAERD o AEFTRIBR C AR (AR
WO e BB E 2 AFEE) TR T
e o] TR 2 B TE 2 P ]
JRAEIINTERR £ 1R 2R HR AT o Hh DT
FREMEREATEEZ AR AR AR &
REHR E R -

T i T e PR k2 R k(e 1 DA
S EEIE AT A GRS EE B RS E
WNEIAT MR o MORTESR £ R G AR
B2 BT AT LUIE P B Y R

AEEC R T GRS =9 B
RIS > BIEATES b < PRI R -

il a At e SR LS B R SOR
£ UESIABE A A SCE B =1
B THTZEPERE (AMIREPEREZ
HE R AR ) JHEHR R R > R
L0y "R o R AEER CEFEE
R R F A ] B2 R 3
DU AT E SR =T
JUE#ET (MG 220) > TAEMEE %
FREA T = A H IR Z AR
WL TIEEC -

BEAh - ARFETE G 2 P B P T
TEAETT (RMEE22a) il Rl iRl
IR Sy B > SO IR v G wh e fl
55 = 9% 2 R Wk SR B R R B
> AE A R 00 AT o 528



d SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Investments in subsidiary companies are carried at cost less impairment losses.

e ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Associated companies are companies, other than subsidiary companies, in which the
Group holds not more than 50 per cent of their equity share capital for the long term

and can exercise significant influence in their management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the results of
associated companies for the year adjusted by amortisation and impairment losses of
goodwill, if any. The consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of net

assets of the associated companies, after attributing fair values to the net assets at the

date of acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies are stated at
cost less impairment losses. The results of associated companies are accounted for by

the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

f DEPRECIATION
All fixed assets except investment properties, properties held for development and
construction in progress are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Changes in the value of investment properties reflecting market conditions,
depreciation and other factors are incorporated in the annual accounts on the basis set

outinnote 1g.

Freehold land is not amortised. Leasehold land is depreciated over the remaining

portion of the relevant lease.

Amortisation of vehicular tunnel (including land and buildings) is provided for over the
franchise period on the basis of a sinking fund calculation whereby annual amounts

compounded at the rate of 7% per annum will equal the net cost of the tunnel.
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Notes to The Accounts

1 Significant accounting policies coninued
Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or valuation,
less impairment losses, if any, over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis at

the following annual rates:

— Buildings 2%-4% or the remaining lease

period of the land

— Other fixed assets, comprising
telecommunications equipment,
traffic equipment, cargo lighters,
computer installations, motor vehicles,
plant and machinery, furniture,

10%-25%

fixtures and equipment

g INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which
construction work and development have been completed and which are held for their

investment potential.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods greater than twenty years
are valued at intervals of not more than three years by independent valuers; in each of
the intervening years, valuations are undertaken by professionally qualified personnel.
The valuations are on an open market value basis related to individual properties and
separate values are not attributed to land and buildings. The valuations are
incorporated in the annual accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to the
investment property revaluation reserve; decreases are first set off against increases on

carlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter are charged to operating profit.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of twenty years or less are

depreciated over the remaining portion of the leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released from the investment

property revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account.

h  PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Properties held for development consist of investments in land for future development
and buildings under construction and properties under development pending any
positive intention either to retain them for investment purposes or to sell them for

proceeds. The investments are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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i CAPITALISATION OF DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Property development expenditure, inclusive of interest and professional fees, is

capitalised as cost of development.

Borrowing costs incurred on assets under development that take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale are capitalised into the carrying value of

the assets under development.

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed for the development of the assets is

based on the attributable cost of funds to the Group.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in

which they are incurred.

j REVENUE RECOGNITION
(i)  Motor vehicles
Revenue arising from the sale of motor vehicles is recognised when the
registration document is issued or on delivery of motor vehicles, whichever is
earlier, which are taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue

excludes any government taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Sales of properties under development and properties held for sale
Income from sales of properties under development is recognised when the
properties developed for sale are sold in advance of completion and the
outcome of projects can be ascertained with reasonable certainty by
reference to the construction progress. Profit is recognised over the course
of the development and is computed in each year as a proportion of the total
estimated profit of the development. The proportion used is calculated by
reference to the proportion of construction costs incurred to date to the
estimated total construction costs to completion of the development and the
extent of the sales proceeds received, after taking into account due allowance

for contingencies.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised at the date when sale

agreement is signed.

(iii) Income from co-operative joint venture
Where the Group has been guaranteed a minimum rate of return on its
investment in co-operative joint ventures, income is accrued at the minimum
rate of return, and any return in excess of the minimum is recognised in the

year in which it is received, or becomes receivable.
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Notes to The Accounts

1

74

Significant accounting policies coninued

(vi)

Other income or dividend from co-operative joint venture is recognised

when the right to receive is established.

Income from disposal of co-operative joint venture is recognised at the date

when sale agreement is signed.

Other goods
Revenue arising from the sale of other goods is recognised on the delivery of
goods to customers. Revenue is determined after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Rendering of services
Commission income and revenue arising from the rendering of repairing
services are recognised when the goods concerned are sold to customers and

when the relevant work is completed respectively.

Revenue from the provision of telecommunications services is recognised

upon delivery of the services.

(vii) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend

is established.

Dividends proposed or declared after their balance sheet date by companies
in which the Group has an investment are no longer recognised as revenue at
the balance sheet date but on the date when the right to receive is
established. As aresult, the Group’s opening retained profits as at 1 January
2000 and 2001 are reduced by Hk$98 million and HK$62 million
respectively, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2000 is
increased by Hk$36 million and accounts receivable as at 31 December
2000 is reduced by HK$62 million (see note 22a). The investment in
associated companies as at 31 December 2000 is increased and accounts

receivable is decreased by Hk$ 387 million.

The Company’s opening retained profits as at 1 January 2000 and 2001 are
reduced by HK$ 19 million and Hk$32 million respectively. The Company’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2000 and accounts receivables as at
31 December 2000 are reduced by Hk$ 13 million (see note 22b).
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k PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

I INVESTMENTS
Co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China are stated at cost (net of
capital repayment) less impairment losses or where appropriate, amortised over a

period no longer than its estimated useful life to the Group.

Interest in other listed and unlisted investments held for the long term are stated at cost
less impairment losses. The carrying amounts of individual listed investments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values have declined
below the carrying amounts. When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the
carrying amount of such securities should be reduced to its fair value. The amount of

the reduction is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Interest in other listed investments not held for the long term are carried at fair value.
At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses arising from the changes
in fair value of such investments are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits
or losses on disposal of such investments, representing the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss account

as they arise.

m OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with
the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable and
receivable under operating leases are accounted for on a straight line basis over the

respective periods of the leases.

n [IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets including goodwill for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognised is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount

of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount.
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Notes to The Accounts

1 Significant accounting policies coninued

o INVENTORIES

Inventories comprising mainly motor vehicles, spare parts, electrical appliances, food,
trading items and steels are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
represents the actual cost of purchase and is calculated on the first-in first-out, specific
identification or weighted average basis as appropriate. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course of
business after the balance sheet date, and in other cases, to management’s estimates

based on prevailing market conditions and net replacement costs.

p FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The accounts of subsidiary companies and associated companies expressed in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at market rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the

profitand loss account with the following exception:

Cathay Pacific prepares its accounts on the basis that borrowings and leasing
obligations relating to aircraft and related equipment are so arranged that repayments
are covered by the anticipated future operating cash flows in the related currencies in
order to reduce exposure to exchange rate fluctuations. Any unrealised exchange
differences on these borrowings, leasing obligations and currency derivatives, and on
related security deposits in Cathay Pacific’s balance sheet, are recognised directly in
equity via the Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses. These exchange differences
are included in the profit and loss account as an adjustment to revenue in the same
period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects the net profit and loss.
As mentioned in note 1a this complies with 1as but does not comply with ssap No. 11
which would have required the exchange differences to pass through the profit and loss
account. The directors of Cathay Pacific consider the adopted treatment gives the

accounts a true and fair view and the auditors of Cathay Pacific agree.

q DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current tax rate in respect of material timing
differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the
accounts to the extent that a liability and/or asset is expected to be payable or

receivable in the foreseeable future.
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2 Turnover 2 EXH
The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies and the ANT 2 ERREH A B AR > T
principal activities of its principal subsidiary companies are set out in note 32 to Wi A 7 2 R RURA AR B W 5E 32 -

the accounts.
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Turnover of the Group comprises the total invoiced value of goods supplied net of > BAIBRBUNBIIE) S @ B 2 AR
government taxes where applicable, and services rendered to customers, gross {8~ HEBCE RS A Rk
proceeds from sale of investments and properties, amounts received and receivable in Bz #08 ~ ARB AR E AT ZBA ;
respect of dividends, income from co-operative joint ventures, toll income, gross BREE - S URERRSRE
property rental and godown and cold storage income, analysed as follows: Rl ATE - ”

Group #H

invik$ million 2001 2000 BN E s CE
Sales of goods 11,738 10,535  &m#HE
Sale of investment &G

— interest in power generation in Hong Kong - 1,552 — AT B ST 2 M A
Services rendered to customers 1,253 679  IRALTREE 2 ME
Dividend income and income from

co-operative joint ventures 1,509 1,700  BEBAKAESE A A
Toll income 520 508 BERECE
Others 2,231 1,070 HAb

17,251 16,044
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Notes to The Accounts BR B Bi5E

2 Turnover continued 2 ZE¥@E A

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical THIERL R A SR I 2 S

segments. Business segment information is chosen as the primary reporting format RS E > o BEEEDLSEH )

because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting. BEREEZBHOrA > Bl
SR B AR B 2 R S

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business is as follows: R .

LUTR #3605 3 2 SR T 3

AT
Group Segment allocations Segment turnover
£H Vi Ear o Vg iEd s et
vk §million 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000  LuEREE L E
Marketing & Distribution S L 8
Motor vehicles and related
services 4,469 4,642 - - 4,469 4,642 TRE A B RS
Trading 5,072 4,281 - - 5,072 4,281 B
Power and Civil Infrastructure 2,657 3,762 - - 2,657 3,762 BT RIERERE
Property 266 266 125 122 391 388 W
Industrial Manufacturing 2,859 2.339 - - 2,859 2,339 LR
Communications 806 232 - - 806 232 fER¥
Others 1,122 522 - - 1,122 522 Hith
17,251 16,044 125 122 17,376 16,166

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows: DATR i 390 68 S ) 4 2 B

BB

Group %M
in vk million 2001 2000 Ry i iR
Hong Kong 8,598 8,399 &t
Mainland China 7.373 5,896 HEIKRE
Japan 443 471 HA
Others 837 1,278 FiAth
17,251 16,044
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3 Profit from Consolidated Activities

3 HFexnn

An analysis of the Group’s profit from consolidated activities by business is as follows: LR 7 4% 3685 ) 7 2 42
A ERm R
Group Segment allocations Segment profit
[ Vg Exr i Vg Ex izl
vk $million 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 LB EE T
Marketing & Distribution 18 Lo i
Motor vehicles and related services 255 270 (96) (96) 159 174 TR A B IR
Trading (62) 12 (29) (26) (91) (14) Y
Power and Civil Infrastructure 1,698 1,981 - - 1,698 1,981 557 MAEMEFE
Property 206 189 125 122 331 BN S
Industrial Manufacturing 221 124 - - 221 124 T¥ER#E
Communications 155 39 - - 155 39 [ER¥E
Others 8 167 - - 8 167 HAt
Less: General & Administration Expenses (349) (301) - - (349) (301) W — B KATECE A
2,132 2,481 - - 2,132 2,481

Group %]

invKS million 2001 2000 I8 e oAt 5
The profit from consolidated activives is arrived at after crediting: A FRBEMDFA
Dividend income from listed investments 151 288 Ak H FTHHREZREWA
HEHFE TR E
Dividend income from unlisted investments 308 347 Z R
Rental income from IR ON
— investment properties —BEWE
Gross income 210 212 Mk as
Less: Direct outgoings (36) (63) W B
174 149
— other operating leases 101 95 — JoAh B A A
Unrealised net (loss)/gain from b 2 R BT
listed investments (166) 225 (F8) Ha Al
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Notes to The Accounts

3 Profit from Consolidated Activities conunued
Group %5

AR EBisE

3 FEEHRH o

invKS million 2001 2000 I8 E TRt 5
and afier charging: WEESE -
Cost of sales (note) 12.602 11,877  S8EMA (Fh)
— including cost of inventories of — B R AR LA

HK$9,626 million
(2000: 1k$8.762 million)

Distribution costs (note) 6386 449
Other operating costs (note) 1,665 1,462
Auditors’ remuneration 12 10
Contributions to staff retirement schemes 55 34
Depreciation and amortisation 493 452
Amortisation of goodwill 11 -
Impairment loss on other fixed assets 75 -

Management fee payable to China

International Trust & Investment

Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited 2 2
Operating lease rentals

—land and buildings 124 86

note:
Included in cost of sales, distribution costs and other operating costs are staff costs of Wk$ 1,250 mllion (2000:
HK$ 2,078 million)

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

TTAEET (CERERE
B AT LRAT AT
TREAS ()
HAEIERA (HHE)
BT 4
1§ BB R EwtE ik
K Y& 57
T A
A 5] 1 B 7 2 W (e 1

ST B B E R

(B ) ARARZEHE
BEMAHE

— L T

HEE -

CETERF R - 7B ROl AR R .2 B L%
R ZE AT (ZFERE BT
NEETL)

AR 7 A 5 B H AR AR AT 2 8 SR A0
FTE SO 2 B A 4 o R AR

Croup %M
invK$million 2001 2000 LB T
Within 1 year 174 173 —%#R
After 1 year but within 5 years 184 166 —HFRMERIFN
After 5 years 7 14 TAFE
365 353
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(72}
-
o
4 Net Finance Charges 4 BEBEIHFE o
Group %5 ::J
in vk million 2001 2000 LAt 5 T O R ;
)
Interest expense FIESC i =
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable E
within five years 588 984 JR TLAF TR 4 A 1 2 SRA T B M 52 @
Bank loans not wholly repayable within five years 13 64 AHI T A AT IR 2 AT B 4
- - w
Other loans wholly repayable within five years 143 212 JR TLAF T AR IR 2 JEA K M
Other loans not wholly repayable within five years 156 58 AZE T A A A 1 2 LAt B ”
900 1,318
Less: Amount capitalised (210) (161) W BT EAZ HUE
690 1,157
Interest income (241) (589) FLEALA
449 568
Other finance charges 55 46 HALRIF ]
504 614
5 Share of Profits less Losses of Associated Companies 5 FiEEATGIRESE
Group %5
in vk million 2001 2000 LA 5 T L R
By business: RSB IMT
Marketing & Distribution 18 Lo
Motor vehicles and related services 25 29 VR AT B 5
Trading 23 21 =87
Power and Civil Infrastructure 120 87 B MRS
Aviation 223 1371 fiz
Property 381 196 ¥
Communications 175 60 fFEX
947 1,764
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Notes to The Accounts BR B Bi5E

6 Taxation 6 #HE

Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 16% (2000: 16%) on the 7 s MBS DL A TR A T R i A 4
estimated assessable profit for the year. Overseas taxation has been calculated on the 16% 2B (“FTLIE T 16%) F1H
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the HNBLIELTS A IR 2 A B RO i 1 4 4 8
countries in which the Group operates. B 2 W 2 BATRIAGEE

Group %5

in vk million 2001 2000 iy N B
Company and subsidiary companies: Al m] KM 2 A
Hong Kong profits tax 108 97 M FB
Overseas taxation 74 49 HAMELIE
Deferred taxation (Note 24) (16) (8) EACHIE (BT 24)
166 138
Associated compantes: W& nw
Hong Kong profits tax 44 36 FHEMFH
Overseas taxation 81 62 HAMBLIE
Deferred taxation 15 (7) HEFEBLIH
140 91
306 229
7 Profit Attributable to Shareholders 7 RERREERF
The Group’s profit attributable to sharcholders is dealt with in the accounts of the FBERRE M P 2 9 AAS A IR A i i —
Company to the extent of Hk$2,182 million (2000: Hk$ 3,634 million). —RATZHET (CFFFRE BR=1

AME=ZTMHETT) -
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o

8 Dividends 8 k& S
intikS million 2001 2000 LUEBE T x
>

R - EFEERIBE - @

2000 Final dividend paid: 1k$0.65 s B 0.65 7t 5
(1999: 1K$0.55) per share 1,427 1,224 (— UL © i858 0,55 7C) <

(/2]

EIRE R —EqRE ;

2001 Interim dividend paid: HK$0.20 B 0.20 T ®
(2000: HK$0.20) per share 439 444 (ZBEEAE I 0.20 TT) =

EE_FFTERBIBE

2001 Final dividend proposed: HK$0.60 B 0.60 IC
(2000: HK$0.65) per share 1,314 1,427 (ZFRFTAE I 0.65 J0)
1,753 1,871

Dividend per share (HK$) 0.80 0.85 HME (BT

The Group has adopted ssap No. 9 (revised) “Events after the Balance Sheet Date” AEBOCRMEBTFENSE LR (8K
which requires that dividends proposed after the balance sheet date should not be i) [EEARKRGEHRZFE] FEn
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. As a result, the proposed final S AR RIS 2 R B RERERR Sy — JE
dividend of the Company for the year 1999 and 2000 of Hk$ 1,224 million and AR ZAR - FL > AR — UL
1K$ 1,427 million respectively which was recorded as a current liability in the accounts % ~FZFE 2 @A BIBE (S50 0l 2
is now re-stated as a separate component of the shareholders’ funds. W RS T E ST T

L) FURBA A AN BEE
SRR L e 20 -

9 Earnings per Share o BEEA

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to sharcholders of 5B F T3 % RS i M W —+— 1 —

1K$2,110 million (2000: 1k$3,291 million) and on the weighted average number of TEIT (ZFEEFE  mE=1+ 2 F

2,194,242,004 shares for the year (2000: 2,204,468,971 shares). T —F &) KFERZ Bk
T #02,194,242,004 B (ZFF T4
2.204,468.971 ) FHH
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Notes to The Accounts

AR EBisE

10 Directors’ Emoluments 10 EEH#&
Group %11
ik §million 2001 2000 LW E BT
Fees 2.0 1.8 s
Salaries 15.4 11.2  ##%
Bonuses 66.6 67.3  fEAL
84.0 80.3
The Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows: EHEMEUWT -
Number of directors
HHEAH
2001 2000
Emoluments Bands P
HK$0 - 1k$1,000,000 7 8 EWHO 7t & W 1,000,000 7T
Hk$1,000,001 - nHk$1,500,000 2 2 W% 1,000,001 o & #H 1,500,000 T
Hk$1,500,001 - 1Hk$2,000,000 3 2 W% 1,500,001 o & #H 2,000,000 T
1K$3,000,001 - 1K$3,500,000 1 - W8 3,000,001 It = #H 3,500,000 T
Hk$3,500,001 - 1k$4.,000,000 - 1 %% 3,500,001 J& % #% 4,000,000 G
HK$4,500,001 - 1HK$5,000,000 1 1 #% 4,500,001 J& % #%¥ 5,000,000 G
HK$7,000,001 - HK$7,500,000 - 1 % 7,000,001 JC 2 #H 7,500,000 TT
HK$9,000,001 - 1HK$9,500,000 1 - % 9,000,001 T & #% 9,500,000 T
HK$11,000,001 - nk$11,500,000 - 1 %% 11,000,001 & % #% 11,500,000 7C
Hk$ 11,500,001 — 1k$12,000,000 1 — B 11,500,001 7t & #¥ 12,000,000 7T
HK$ 13,000,001 - 1k$13,500,000 1 1 %% 13,000,001 & & #¥ 13,500,000 JC
HK$ 15,000,001 - HK$15,500,000 1 1 %% 15,000,001 & & #% 15,500,000 JC
1k$ 18,000,001 — 1k$18,500,000 1 1 8% 18,000,001 7t & #% 18,500,000 7T

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during the year amounted to

HK$0.8 million (2000: HK$0.8 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year were also directors and

their emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
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11 Retirement Benefits
Ciric Pacific Limited operates two principal schemes to provide retirement benefits for

employees of the Group as well as its subsidiary companies and associated companies.

The Citic Group Retirement Plan (“the Plan”) is a defined contribution scheme
governed by a Trust Deed. The plan is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance and is exempted under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The Group has appointed an independent trustee who in turn appoints the
investment manager and plan administrator to manage the Plan in accordance with the
Trust Deed and Rules. Employees are offered a choice of investments and the trustee

issues statements to members of the Plan twice a year.

A Crric Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“mMPr Scheme”) has also been set up
in accordance with the stipulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance to offer a choice to employees who opt not to join the Plan. Eligibility of
membership of the MpF Scheme is identical to that of the Plan and new employees are
offered the choice of joining either the Plan or the Mpr Scheme. The MpF Scheme is

managed through a master trust offered by an independent service provider.

Contributions to the Plan are in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules whilst
contributions to the MPF Scheme are at rates specified in the terms of the master trust
scheme. Assets of the Plan and the Mpr Scheme are held separately in funds managed
and administered by the respective trustees. Forfeited contributions under the Plan are
credited to the accounts of the remaining members of the Plan in proportion to their

account balances.

11 BHKER
PEREARAARA WE TGS > 51
Py A SR B OB g 8 m) B B A W) 2 B AR
PR IRAEA] -

PR (DRIKEHE) B—THZAE
RESA) B 2 U B < R RIE AR
TRMCEB AT RO OIREM - S A5 3 1k 2
MBI % - AEBO R B fEE
KAER BRI 2 fEREA - (FREARIER
REFLH) Tt )40 F) 8 PR ARG ) > I 2 RAT
A 2 BUE RS RATBUE BN « T B T AT 8
{ENGIDES e iRETIRES: SRR NP REXE
T UCE BN 1 FE L ) 2 IR IART B
—f

HOE SR A e B (RS
B)) IREAREER I AR S BRG] 2 B
ML > A2 SR RG] 2 B T it
£ o ZEM e # 2 A B SR IR
ZERAR > THE B TR R 2 AR AR
Al F A Bt E o WA SRR YA
SRS (L R SR 48k 2 S RS RE I LA B o

RPREH B 2 SRR RS SE 24 Rk A
FREE o T R T ) A ) e B A T
B 2 Wk 2 LA e o IR IRRTE i
ey [Pa <y R EPAEE VN A $
SRR BB i 2 B R LR T A 2 4%
H &5 R LB B -
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Notes to The Accounts

AR B BifsE

12 Fixed Assets 12 BE&EE
a  GROUP a  £H
Properties
Investment Self-used held for Vehicular Others
properties  properties  development wnnel (note i) Total
FFEERE HAly
in vK$ million REYE HHAYE 2y IR (Wt ata) HE LUBRE LR
Cost or valuation HEA
At 1 January 2001 5,531 3,328 270 1,983 4,543 15,655 —EFE—FE—J—H
Exchange adjustments (32) (8) - - (5) (45) L
Additions 6 12 217 - 1,754 1,989 &
Disposals (5) (27) - - (135) (167) &
Revaluation deficit (Note 22a) (157) - - - - (157)  EfGEAZ A (KT 22a)
Reclassification 14 (12) - - (2) - HHNHE
Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - 120 120 WK E 2 7
“ERFAE
At31 December 2001 3357 3293 487 1983 6275 17395 A=t N
Accumulated depreciation LS/
At 1 January 2001 - 490 - 436 1,296 2,222 _—FE—HFE—~H—H
Exchange adjustments - (2) - - (3) (5) it
Charge for the year - 59 - 58 3006 423 AREETE
Impairment loss - - - - 7 5 MiEER
Written back on disposals - (7) - - (83) (90) H 3[R
Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - 68 68 T E 2w
—ERE A
A3l December2000 . - 540 - 494 1,659 2,693 +-HA=+—H
Net book value KR (H
—ERE A
A31 December 2001 5357 2,753 487 1489  4.616 14,702  +-f=1—H
“ERETE
At 31 December 2000 5,531 2,838 270 1,547 3,247 13,433 TZ-A=+—H
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows: LA EAR A A
AT
At cost - 3,293 487 1,983 6,275 12,038 A
Atprofessional valuation — 2001 5,357 - - - - 5,357 E¥hE- —FFF
5,357 3,293 487 1,983 6,275 17,395
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«

note: Ftat - 2
(i) Interest capitalised in fixed assets other than investment properiies amounts to Wk$ 106 million (2000: ) BREYEN) CHEEENEHRTERLZ w
HK$35 million). FIEAERBN— AT ET (CFEEE 1=
- >

:Fﬁ EI% o) ° o

(@) Other fived assets comprise traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer installations, telecommunications o
equipment, optical fibre network under construction, motor vehicles, plant and machinery, furniture, fixiures @) FAEE G E IR B & ;
and equipment. FEHEMT - Tl M - LA R TR T
-

)

(i) Optical fibre network under construction is stated at cost, including borrowing cost capitalised.

(i) [ESLBAAE T TR A QIFCHT
B AN - o
"
Croup %M H
kS mallion 2001 2000 LB EETHE
Analysis of additions by business: E Y - v
Marketing & Distribution S S
Motor vehicles and related services 96 86 VR AT B 5
Trading 127 132 =07
Power and Civil Infrastructure 3 2 e 4]
Property 223 17 /ES
Industrial Manufacturing 206 273 THRE
Communications 1,436 1,321 EEES
Others 2 - HoAts
Corporate 16 5 R3EE
2,109 1,836
Analysis of additions by geographical area: eI B I S ) 7 2 O BT
Hong Kong 374 242 i
Mainland China 1,709 1,572 EHEN
Japan & Others 26 22 H AR J HoAl
2,109 1,836
Analysis of depreciation by business: /E Y7 i
Marketing & Distribution 18 S i
Motor vehicles and related services 63 61 VR AT B 5
Trading 48 41 =07
Power and Civil Infrastructure 61 57 LEVE i
Property 35 34 /ES
Industrial Manufacturing 175 174 THRE
Communications 29 7 G R¥
Others 2 - HoAts
Corporate 10 7 R3EE
423 381
Analysis of impairment loss by business: T 00 2 W (E R 1R T -
Marketing & Distribution S S
Trading 75 - g5
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Notes to The Accounts

12 Fixed Assets coninued

AR EBisE

12 BET&E &

b COMPANY b AT
Motor vehicles, equipment,
Jurniture and fixtures
in ik million TR R R RAEE LU B r
Cost JRA
At 1 January 2001 84 —“FEXZ—-HE—H—H
Additions 14 HE
Disposals (2) E&
At31 December2001 96 TR+ A =1+—H
Accumulated depreciation it
At 1 January 2001 30 —“FL—4FE—H—H
Charge for the year 10 AEERE
Written back on disposals (2) HE R
At3l December200t 38 TEEFE+ T H=+—H
Net book value BRI (E
At 31 December 2001 58 CEE-FT A =T
At 31 December 2000 54 CEELRFT A=+ —H
¢ The tenure of the properties of the Group is as follows: ¢ RERWEZFHAT
Properties
Investment Self-used held for
properties properties development Total
i HKS million #’EY EVLE MG ek HagE LB BT E
Leaschold properties
held in Hong Kong B2
- Long term lease 642 19 - 661 — R
— Medium term lease 4,502 2.116 278 6,896 — AT A
— Short term lease - 76 - 76 — AR A
Properties held overseas IS
- Freehold 213 225 - 14138 — KA
- Long term lease - - 209 209 — ML
— Medium term lease - 857 - 857 — AT A
5,357 3,293 487 9,137
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d  Property valuation
The Group’s investment properties have been independently revalued on an open
market value basis as at 31 December 2001. The details of the independent qualified

valuers are as follows:

d WAl

AL BEEYSEC b A EATR — %%
AT = H A B E R E
{6 o BS7 BRI {ERT 2 FEME QT -

Properties located in Valuers i B [ESVS
Hong Kong Knight Frank il & 17 i
Japan Tekko Building Co., Limited AA

e  Fixed assets and properties held for sale under current assets of the Group let

under operating leases to generate rental income are as follows:

e AEBBEBLEHAORGUEAHS
WA 2 [ G FORN B G THH T 2 58
LES NN

Other Fived Properuies
Investment Self-used Sived assets held for
properties properties assets total sale
T
in ik million REYZE  HHYFE  BERE HE FEWFE LA ECRE
Cost or valuation 5,357 27 173 5,557 316 AUREE(E
Accumulated depreciation - (3) (88) (91) - ARirE
Net book value at HR T 1+
31 December 2001 5,357 24 85 5,466 316 e i e e el &
Depreciation charges
for the year - - 22 22 - AR
13 Subsidiary companies 13 KIBAT
Company 47l
in vk million 2001 2000 LAt 5 T O R
Unlisted shares, at cost less I LR
impairment losses 169 169 I A 2% i (L
Amounts due by subsidiary companies 47,776 47,963  WHEA R XA SH
Amounts due to subsidiary companies (6,950) (5,748)  KtEA R4
40,995 42,384

Particulars of the principal subsidiary companies are shown in Note 32.

FRMHE 2 7RO R F A 32 -
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Notes to The Accounts

14 Associated Companies

AR EBisE

14 BEAT
Group *H

invKS million 2001 2000 I8 E TRt 5

Share of net assets 16,309 16,136 Fir{h & i E

Goodwill (Note 15) 2.196 2,371 PHE (it 15)
18,505 18,507

Loans due from associated companies (note b) 8,137 TATT  BEAFRAEZER (D)

Loans due to associated companies (note b) (1,615) (550) XEBEARZER (MEEb)
25,027 25,434

Investment at cost: FE A

Unlisted shares 6,592 6,594 FF Ly

Shares listed in Hong Kong 8,591 8,591  Fis Lt
15,183 15.185

Market value of listed shares 8,594 12,375 Eikfpz i

Company 47l

in vk million 2001 2000 LA T L R

Investment at cost: FE A

Unlisted shares 337 337 FLREMm

Shares listed in Hong Kong 931 931 &k LBy

1,268 1,268
Loans due from associated companies 3,128 2,720  BEAFIR A 2R
Loans due to associated companies (1,595) (536) KEWEAT 2 HK
2,801 3.452
Market value of listed shares 716 1,031  Ewilmz i
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Dividend income from associated companies during the year is as follows:

Croup %M

AR AR I BT

kS mallion 2001 2000 LB EETHE

Listed associated companies 494 404  EWEEAT

Unlisted associated companies 395 258 JF ETTEE A
889 662

note: T -

(@)  Included in assoctated companies are Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (“nkr”) and Western Harbour
Tunnel Company Limited (“wircr”) whose year ends are 31 March and 31 July respectively which are not
coterminous with the Group. The results of 1ikr and wiict, have been equity accounted for based on their

management accounts for the period from 1 January 2001 to 31 December 2001.

(b)  Loans due from associated companies and loans due to associated companies are interest bearing at
market rates except for an amount of approximately nk$37 million (2000: vk $31 million) loans to associated

companies, which are non-interest bearing. 1hese loans have no fived repayment terms.

(c)  Partculars of the principal associated companies are shown in Note 33.

(@) BEESATEIEEEREA RN ([FilR
1) REBrEEE AR (TR - Zmlt 2
Az BBAE AT H I = H =1 —HREH=
T H o BARSERZ A5 ORI o 7l B B
ZHEMOIEH D —FF [~ HE-FE—F
A= HA 2 G AE H LI R AR

)  BREHEER A AXA 2 EHN =T
CHHT (ZEFLE =T —H%7T) B8
BN HERE L AKX AR BIE 4 7l 2 B3
WG IR G E A B o % B R A7 I

(©)  TEBEL A EHHIAEAREE 33 -

91

(7]
[
(15
o
o
w
19
>
(15
o
[
=)
-
<
[
(7]

EE R &




Notes to The Accounts

AR EBisE

15 Goodwill 15 &E
Subsidiary companies Associated companies
in vk$ million Wt 23l B Al R LAEY: Vi
Cost JEA
At 1 January 2001 - - “FEX-F—H—H
Prior year adjustments (note 1c¢) - 3,610  AEETEE (M 1)
As restated - 3,610 75
Addition arising on acquisitions PR AR BEEA T
during the year 364 - WSS T
At31 December2001 364 3,610  “HFEFF A=t
Accumulated amortisation LR
At 1 January 2001 - - “EZL—-F—-H—H
Prior year adjustments (note 1c¢) - 1,239 BRI (o)
As restated - 1.239 &7
Amortisation for the year 11 175 AFEE S
At31 December200t ] mn 1,414 TR A=+ —H
Net book value MR H 1 (E
At 31 December 2001 353 2,196 —EFEXHF+Z=1+—H
At 31 December 2000, as restated - 2,371 ZEEREELA=1—H > &P
Analysis of goodwill amortisation by business: 1RFET B3 2 R T
Marketing & Distribution S S i
Trading 9 - 85
Communications 2 9 fFR%
Aviation - 166 iz
11 175
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16 Investments 16 #&E
Group %5
in vk million 2001 2000 LAt 5 T O R
Co-operative joint ventures atEaE LA
Unlisted investments, at cost 6,629 7,298 kBT AA
Amounts due by co-operative joint ventures 2,043 2,148  AEABEATFKHK
8,672 9,446
Less: Amortisation (461) (391) B : #EEY
________ 8,211 9,055
Listed investments, at cost FiiE A
Shares listed in Hong Kong 186 199 i LriBd
Shares listed outside Hong Kong - 210 FW LA TR0y
186 409
Less: Impairment - (43) B BlEEE
__________ 186 366
Unlisted investments LR E
Shares, at cost 64 64 B
Add: Advances made 27 35 n: AT EA
91 99
Less: Impairment (36) (38) W WiEEE
55 61
Less: Advances received (3) (3) Wi ElEIA
298
8,449 9,479
Market value of listed shares 133 321 bR 2T

Amortisation represents amortisation of investment in Power and Civil Infrastructure.

Particulars of the principal co-operative joint ventures are shown in Note 34.

HSH 1 B8 AR S 2 BE RS o
FHEAESER FERHE R F R 34 -
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Notes to The Accounts

17 Amount due from a Substantial Shareholder
This unsecured and interest bearing amount due from China International Trust and

Investment Corporation (“Crtic Beijing”) has been fully repaid during the year.

18 Inventories

At 31 December 2001, the carrying amount of inventories that are carried at net
realisable value amounted to HK$ 736 million (2000: 1K$437 million).

19 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and Prepayments

AR EBisE

17 FERRRELH
MR IE By BEREBREAR (T Ed
T iR B2 B R B B

18 #&
MEZF—F+ A= —H > AT ST
AR A RIRTE (2B LR =T E
T ZEZRE CBENE=TLE
BT

19 FEWERIE « FEWARS e RFEH

I8
Group %E[H Company 47l
in vk million 2001 2000 2001 2000 LIt W T
Trade debtors JREN B 5 HRIR
— Within 1 year 1.370 1,137 - - %N
- Over 1 year 34 53 - - ——fLE
1,404 1,190 - -
Accounts receivable, deposits
and prepayments 1,926 1,423 118 140 FEUURAK - $&d BB H0R
3,330 2,613 118 140

note:
(©)  Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice date.

(@) The Group has a defined credit policy for the respective business units.

94
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@) JEWCE 5 IR I SR 1 i & AT R % 3 5
HAMEIX Z 2 H T o

(i) AIEFC L E RG] 7 B -



20 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits and Accruals

20 FEHERIE - EMTERER - MERFEH
HIE

Group %H Company 4 ¥
in vk million 2001 2000 2001 2000 LAt 5 T O R
Trade creditors TS 5 5 MR
— Within 1 year 1,136 892 - - —-—FR
- Over 1 year 18 9 - - ——%LE
1.154 901 - -
Accounts payable, deposits
and accruals 1,269 1,586 68 143 BERTHRER ~ $%4 RIER 30E
2,423 2,487 68 143
21 Share Capital 21 K&
Number of
shares of
Hk$0. 40 each WK million
BRI (B 1 0.40 T
Z IR0 B H T #
Authorised: i
At 31 December 2000 and 2001 3,000,000,000 1,200 —“FEZFER-EZLZ-F+_A=+—H
Issued and fully paid: EE#IFIHE -
At 1 January 2001 2.196,000.160 878 —FE—4F—J]—H
Repurchase during the year (6.220.,000) (2) AN EER
At 31 December 2001 2.189,780.160 876 —“EFEX—H+ZH=1+—H
Changes during the year: R 2 B

(i)  During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 6,220,000 of its own shares

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, all of which have been cancelled,

()  AER - AN TR RS 58 5
A BRZS A [ A 5 27 B4 3t 6,220,000

as follows: JB > AR T AWGEE - SRR
Purchase price per share
Number of shares — Total purchase price Highest Lowest
Month/Year repurchased vk S million HKS' HKS
LA o] (e
115 A3 TR 2dlis
FH o] J& 0 B F W BT T ki
September 2001 6,220,000 88 15.90 13.15 Z=FEL A
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Notes to The Accounts

AR B PifeE

22 Reserves 22 fitfE
a  GROUP a K
Investment
Capiral property — Exchange
Share  redemption Capital revaluation  fluctuation General — Reained
premium reserve reserve Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profits Total
invik§ million R R FER AR HE BT Wl MR REER B LUBWE AR
At 1 January 2000 20,881 3 4,070 (2,154) 710 0 128 13.683 37321  “EEEFE-A—H
Prior year adjustments LR
Goodwill written off - - - 14T - - - (1457) - TR
Amortisation of goodwill - - - - - - - (1,064)  (1,064) T L
Dividend income - - - - - - - (98) (98) JREA
Dividend paid - - - - - - - 1224 1224 EIRME
As restated 20,881 3 4,070 (697) 710 6 1286 12,288 37389  EF
Premium on issue of shares,
net of expenses 3.901 - - - - - - - 3901 BTy i BE
Goodwill on consolidation HARBEEL
written off - - - (LTT9) - - - - (LTT9) ZTEMR
Share of reserves of
associated companies - - 4 - 33 491 - - 528 FrikHE A R
Reserve written off - - (12) - - - - - (12) R
Surplus on revaluation of properties - - - - 211 - - - 21 WEEMFEEZ LG
Exchange translation differences - - - - (7) 11 - - 4 AN E R
Reserves released - - (448) - - - - - (448)  felifhe 1ol 3¢
Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (991) (991)  BE[R Bty
Transfer to capital
redemption reserve - 13 - - - - - (13) - HEEHE G [ f
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 4 (4) - ERmF
Profit attributable to sharcholders - - - - - - - 3,291 3291 JRORIRE A i A
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - - (1668)  (1668) RE (HFEE8)
“ZEEE
At 31 December 2000 24,782 16 3,614 (2.476) 947 508 132 12903  40.426 ToA=+—H
Representing: e
SRR
At31 December 2000 after =t+—HEHA
proposed final dividend 38,999 BRI E
o e == 20
2000 Final dividend proposed 1,427 HEE
40,426
Rewained by: H P I A AR B 2 0K -
Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 16 3,605  (2476) 377 24 127 9808 36263  ALE LHEAR
Associated companies - - 9 - 570 484 5 3,095 4,163 BiEAT
24,762 16 3,614 (2,476) 947 508 132 12903 40426
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)
-
«c
Investment o
Capital property  Exchange :
Share  redemption Capital revaluation  fluctuation General — Retained -
premium reserve reserve Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profits Total ;
=2 REYF  EENH 8
in ik $ million Ryl EFIRE B L il AR REEF M LB HE A 2
At [ January 2001 24,782 16 3,014 (3,933) 947 508 132 14234 40,300 —EFE—F—H—H E
Prior year adjustments W @
Goodwill written off - - - 1,457 - - - (1,457) - PR 4o
Amortisation of goodwill - - - - - - - (1,239)  (1,239) P w
Dividend income - - - - - - - (62) (62) JRR A W
Dividend paid - - - - - - - 1,427 1,427 BRI e
As restated 24,782 16 3,014  (2,476) 947 508 132 12,903 40,426  HEJ
Share of reserves of
associated companies - - - - 181 175 - (17)* 339 P { B %/A\ Gl
Deficit on revaluation of T A 2 A
properties (Note 12 a) - - - - (157) - - - (157) (Fff3E 12a)
Exchange translation differences - - - - 9) 6 - - (3) I
Reserves realised - - - - (2) - - - (2) el
Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (86) (86) 1 ] JR A7y
Transfer to captial redemption reserve - 2 - - - - - (2) - EEHEE AR
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 6 (6) - BEREF
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 2,110 2,110 IR R £ 2
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - - (1,866)  (1,866) JRE (FE8)
S
At31 December 2001 24,782 18 3,604 (2,476) 960 689 138 13,036 40,761 +ZA=+—H
Representing: 0%
“EEELT
At 31 December 2000 after =+—HEHA
proposed final dividend 39,447 AEA BB
et e = S
2001 Final dividend proposed 1,314 AR
40,761
Rewained by: H Ao AR B 2 S0H
Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 18 3,605  (2,476) 209 30 133 10,123 36,424 ALNE KR A
Associated companies - - 9 - 751 659 5 2,913 4,337 BEAT
24,782 18 3,014 (2,476) 960 689 138 13,036 40,761
note: Bt -

The exchange fluctuation reserve included the Group’s share of the exchange reserve of Cathay Pacific. As set out

in accounting policies No.Ip. the Groups profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2001 would
have increased by wk$ 175 million (2000: ik $444 million) had ssar No.11 been adopted by Cathay Pacific.

T 2530 T fl i 6 1 A S B A D 28 2 2 S (A o
WEFHEARE Ip BPTE - (30058 2 AR5tk o
Al A —3f » AEBE R = FEF—F+ZH =
o AR 2 IR AR C A i W — T

* It relates 1o the repurchase of shares at Cathay Pacific

BT (ZEERAE R E D T T

R BF A I 2 S
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Notes to The Accounts BR B Bi5E

22 Reserves conunued 22 f#fE &
b COMPANY b AH
Capital
redemption Share Retained
reserve premium profits Total
Bl

in vuk$ million (i SR i 15 PR B i 7 Mg LR A E G
At 1 January 2000 3 20,881 10,007 30,891 —EETE—F—H
Prior year adjustments LA

Dividend income - - (19) (19) BB A

Dividend paid - - 1,224 1,224 EIREE
As restated 3 20,881 11,212 32,096 #E7%|
Premium on issue of shares,

net of expenses - 3,901 - 3.901 A7 et i fE i 2
Repurchase of shares - - (991) (991)  J&[RI Ay
Transfer to capital

redemption reserve 13 - (13) — R AN ] A
Profit for the year available

for distribution (Note 7) - - 3,634 3,634 FRAENIREF (B 7)
Dividends (Note 8) - - (1,668) (1,668) ME (M)
At 31 December 2000 16 24,782 12,174 36,972 —EEERFE+FZJ=+—H
Representing: U
At 31 December 2000 after “EREETNA

proposed final dividend 35,545 =t —HEFABRARBKE
2000 Final dividend proposed 1,427  #HE-FFTERBBE

36,972
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Capital
redemption Share Retained
reserve premium profits Total
B[]

in uK$ million fi# i SR 15 PR i 7 M LR AR
At 1 January 2001 16 24,782 10,779 35,577 —EZEF—H—H—H
Prior year adjustments LA

Dividend income - - (32) (32) B A

Dividend paid - - 1,427 1,427 SRS
As restated 16 24,782 12,174 36,972 FEJ
Repurchase of shares - - (86) (86) [ Ay
Transfer to capital

redemption reserve 2 - (2) - R A
Profit for the year available

for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,182 2,182 @W—H Bk A (B5E 7)
Dividends (Note 8) - - (1.866) (1,866) & (FHit8)
At 31 December 2001 18 24,782 12,402 37,202 —EE A=t 0
Representing: U
At 31 December 2001 after B

proposed final dividend 35,888 =t—HERABERANKE
2001 Final dividend proposed 1,314 #s —FT - ERYIKRE

37,202

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2001, calculated under section

79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$ 12,402 million

(2000: Hk$ 12,174 million).

TR A AR BIES 79B Wt 2 AN/ /]
WMRFEHR —EE—F T+ H=1—Hf
BT O IUECEEC (CERRE
hlE—H - EETHESET) -
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Notes to The Accounts

23 Long Term Borrowings

AR BBt

23 REIME

a a
Group % Company 4 ¥
intk$ million 2001 2000 2001 2000 LI E B TR
Bank loans WATHK
— unsecured 8,187 12,792 7,351 10,231 — JEHCH
- secured 38 314 - - — KA
8,225 13,106 7,351 10,231
Other loans HoAth B3
— unsecured 4,923 1,429 1,401 1,402 — AT
- secured - 100 - - — KA
4,923 1,529 1,401 1,402
13,148 14,635 8,752 11,633
Amounts repayable within one
year included under current —HE N B B
liabilities (739)  (1,678) (701) - VPN NSt
12,409 12,957 8,051 11,633
note: M
(1) Bank loans and other loans of the Group and the Company not wholly repayable within five years @) ARLE AL F B A I 8 A R 2 R
amounted to vik$4, 142 million (2000 vik$ 1,686 million) and vik$nil million (2000 vik$ 1,480 million) respectively: F1 B3 T Al B3R ) o i B0 - — (5 D T —
TC (ZFEFAE - A/ AT RE (Z
FEFE BT IEATET)

(i) The Company has issued a us$ 100,000,000 Senior Note due 2006 (the “Notes™). The Notes will rank: in

right of payment pari passu to all other indebtedness of the Company. Interest on the Notes is payable semi-

annually in arrear at 7.37% per annum. The Notes will mature on 15 February 20006 unless previously prepaid by

the Company:

(@) The Company has issued a Japanese Yen 9,500,000.000 Floating Rate Bond due 2002 (the “Bonds”).

Interest on the Bonds is payable semi-annually in arrears at siv-month London Inter-Bank Offered Raze for

Japanese Yen minus 0.35% per annum.

(tv)  On 1 June 2001, Crric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company; issued

and sold a total of vs$450 million principal amount of 7.625 % guaranteed notes due 2011 (“Guaranteed Notes”)

Jor refinancing the indebtedness of the Company and for general corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the

purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed Notes remained outstanding ar

the end of the year:

(v)  Bank loans and other loans, other than the Notes, the Bonds and the Guaranteed Notes are fully repayable

up to 2007 and bear interest at the prevailing market rate.

100

(i) AT I N Jud i 2 5
T (T5HE)) o %508 AT BUR oy /] oA ] 5 2
WeHKTER] » RIS F IR LA F B
7.37% o BEIEAGI ZFEENFZH R H B > A
VAGIE R b v

(i) ARLFBELTILA B A E R EE AR
ZIREMES ([MEF)) > ERF AR A L
1 > 4EE 1% H BN 18 A 2080877 [ #4756 0.35%
FE-

() HZFFAENA—H KAAZEEHE
2] Crre Pacific Finance (2001) Limired #RF—FF—
ERLH AR =EEFE—FNH—HZ A ik
AT R M AR B I T T #5602 7.625% (7
PR ([RFEFIR) TREE  UERALAZE
BT PG RAEF— IR EHE B & o T IRAETFR
M F——AE B RIS IR A AR AE R
FS Gix D

)  BREDE - o RREFII - RITHHR LA
o E A~ FFLAF I AL AR - BRI

HFIFHIE -



b The maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s long term liabilities is as follows:

b AR EAN A R AR I
wr

Group %H Company A ¥
in vk million 2001 2000 2001 2000 LA 5 T O R
Bank loans are repayable AT R
— in the first year 110 1,645 80 - —-—FR
—in the second year 584 5,950 338 5717 - RN
— in the third to fifth years - =ZRhERN
inclusive 7,316 4,858 6,933 3.914 (E5E EmE)
— after the fifth year 215 653 - 600 - T
a5 Bas T 102
Other loans are repayable HAb Bk 2 R
— in the first year 629 33 621 - —-—FR
— in the second year 4 662 - 622 - AR
— in the third to fifth - =Z2RER
years inclusive 780 54 780 - (EA5 B R4
— after the fifth year 3,510 780 - 780 - AR
4923 ] 1529 Lot 1,402
13,148 14,635 8,752 11,633
24 Deferred Taxation 24 REHIE
Group %5
invik$ million 2001 2000 N E T
At 1 January 237 254 —H—HZER
Exchange adjustments (10) (9) iR
Acquisition of a subsidiary company 4 — WS TR 2
Net written back for the year (Note 6) (16) (8) AFNBEMIFAE (FE o)
At 31 December 215 237 FTA=THZEHE
Provided in the accounts in respect of: SR H 2 B T IR
Accelerated depreciation allowances 215 237 BT B

Potential deferred tax liability has not been quantified for the surplus on the revalued

investment properties in Hong Kong as this does not constitute a timing difference for

deferred taxation purposes.

S EEAG A U 4 ) 3 2 L BRI AE B R T
FALAEBUR 2 > #OT RS BRI B R
AT -
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Notes to The Accounts

25 Assets and Liabilities by Segments

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities by business segment is as

AR EBisE

25 HEAERER
VIR B B U ) 7 2 SR B A M A

follows: B
Segment Investments in Segment
Assets Associared Companies Liabilities Total
HERE BEnaRE AHAE Bl

intk$million 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 LLEREELHE
Marketing & Distribution S

Motors vehicles and

related services 1,503 1,358 79 51 (436) (484) 1,146 925 RH R RS

Trading 1,878 1,546 87 i (644) (517) 1,321 1,106 Y
Power and Civil Infrastructure 10,551 10,496 1,074 1,005 (24) (54) 11,601 11447 8% ARG
Aviation - - 13,247 13,466 - - 13,247 13466 iz
Property 8,173 8,312 9,276 9,649 (85) (143) 17,364 17818 W
Industrial Manufacturing 3,078 311 - - (590) (781) 2,488 2330  TEuE
Communications 4,007 2,548 1,204 1,186 (3,223) (1,384) 2,048 2350 fE¥
Others 2,535 3,983 - - (66) (141) 2,469 3842 Hfh
Segment assets/ (liabilities) 31,725 31,354 25,027 25,434 (5,068) (3,504) 51,684 53284 HEIEE/ (AR
Corporate 4,073 4,945 (11,994)  (14.692)  (7,921) 9,147) f¥EE
Provision for taxation (141) (119)  BiBMEAG
Deferred taxation (215) (237)  EERE

43,407 43,181
An analysis of the Group’s segment assets by geographical area is as follows: LR 4% 0 1 3o ) 2 T ) U
AT
in vk million 2001 2000 Ry N iR
Hong Kong 14,701 15,170 ik
Mainland China 16,304 15,007  FPERRE
Japan 517 706 HA
Others 203 471 HAh
31,725 31,354

102




26 Capital Commitments 26 EXEIE

Group %5
kS million 2001 2000 LB EETHE
Authorised but not contracted for (note) 584 21 CAEEHARSRA (R
Contracted but not provided for (note) 2.160 1,597  BAELEREM (FhE)
note: i

The capital commitments of authorised but not contracted for and contracted but not provided for in respect of
plant, property and equipment amount to vk $8 million (2000: vk $21 million) and vik$ 1,524 million (2000:
HK$ 1,560 million) respectively.

27 Operating Lease Commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

of the Group at 31 December are as follows:

Croup %M

EHLAEAR R R CREATI AR < ARG &
s ~ WK IR T E T (ZEEE
T HETT) Kl T T
(ZFFFE B TEATHL) -

27 ZXHWORE
Rt ZA=+—H > AL A REHEA T
2 BRSO 2 AR A SRR T

invik$ million 2001 2000 N E T
Properties commitments I ER
— Within 1 year 124 120 - %R
— After 1 year but within 5 years 185 185 - —HFRMELER
— After 5 years 92 89 - HAFK
e 394
Other commitments HoAb A
— Within 1 year 51 15 -—%RK
— After 1 year but within 5 years 60 6 - FRMERLFER
— After 5 years 18 19 - HFE
___________ 29 4
530 434
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Notes to The Accounts

28 Contingent Liabilities

a The Company together with other beneficial shareholders of Western Harbour
Tunnel Company Limited (“wnrcL”) have agreed jointly and severally to guarantee the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region that whrcr will complete
the Western Harbour Crossing (“Crossing”) within budget of approximately HK$ 7.5
billion including repair costs to be incurred after the operation date of the Crossing
but before the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate. The Crossing was completed in
April 1997 with total cost of approximately HK$6.8 billion, pending the issuance of the

Maintenance Certificate.

The beneficial sharcholders of whTCL have agreed that in relation to any claim made or
asserted under the aforesaid guarantee, as between themselves, the total of all liabilities
in respect of a claim thereunder and of all costs, charges and expenses suffered or
incurred by any of them resulting therefrom or attributable thereto shall be shared by

them in proportion to their respective ultimate ownership in WHTCL.

b  The Company has provided a guarantee to The Export-Import Bank of the United
States (“Eximbank”) for an export credit to a co-operative joint venture company,
Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power Company, Limited (“Ligang”™) pursuant to an
agreement dated 3 July 1995 between Ligang, the Company and Eximbank, by which
Eximbank established a credit not exceeding us$ 134 million in favour of Ligang for a
period of 15 years, repayable by 24 semi-annual instalments beginning 15 October
1998 at an interest rate of 5.95% per annum and the Company guaranteed the
repayment of the amounts outstanding under such contract. As of the financial year
end date, the outstanding amount has been reduced to us$86.3 million. Each equity
participant in Ligang has agreed to share in financial assistance to Ligang in

proportion to their equity interest in Ligang.

¢ The Company has provided a guarantee to Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau, a
German state-owned bank, for an export credit up to a maximum of us$20.5 million

granted to a subsidiary company, Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Co., Ltd.

d  The Company has provided a several guarantee up to a maximum amount of
approximately HK$ 1,477 million to support a loan facility of HK$2,400 million granted

by a group of financial institutions to an associated company, Treasure Trove Limited.

e The Company has provided a guarantee on the us$450 million Guaranteed Notes

issued by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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28 FAAEMR

a A A Y B AR A R
(TPYRE |) Al i A R IR) ] B Al 1
VAT T R B AR IR - PRASTYBE AT
A B ST FUR R A R I B
i (TREE ) - GLF% i BRAE B AR AR
REBYIE CHIPrG ZAEEE T - BER—
BT SE > SSAE s s A
o (WFFEE i REENIE) -

BURDE B AR I3t Z AR TR > kg
B i BOR TR B2 S P BE T A 2 A B
A HE ER 191 8 3 B 2 T A PR L T 2
TRIE 2 —YIA ~ B RS

b MRER-AALELA=ZHHEES
BARNLEMEEARAR ([FRED) - A
WAl BRBGE S RAT (T DT ) BT
S Wbk o AR A A e A O RAT R AR
PR R o MR - A ORAT A
AR L S+ HAEMAZ R — =T A
BRTUZEE  EREEEU iU
PAN: S U5 I p T B L ey LR
I 5.95% » Ao T PRI 1 FRE R A B
BRI o RIBUEEAAE > A RE D B
FNTAA =BT o M 2 JBOR R 1%
B FRHE Z HERR EL) > R < BABOED) -

C AU ) Jy HL BRI 2w T B B o
ST PR~ ) 1) R I A SR A T
MR R A TR L EE TR OER
TR LR -

d AR LHEE A Treasure
Limited 2 —JEU5 DA o SR B e pk fR 4Lt
Fm & R uE T E E Tz Al
il

Trove

e ARFERH—-MEEMELFAETL
PR 0T 8 Se T PR A SR R SR R -



f  The Company has provided a several guarantee up to 80% of the liability of a
subsidiary company of the Company, under the lease agreement for leasing certain
equipment from 1BM Leasing Company Limited at the contract sum of approximately
Us$ 15.5 million. The guarantee was released in February 2002 upon the sale of
interest in the optical fibre network to China International Trust & Investment

Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“Crric HK”).

g The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 80% to support loan
facilities of RmB500 million granted by a bank to several subsidiaries of the Company
involving in optical fibre network. The guarantee was released in February 2002 upon

the sale of interest in the optical fibre network to Citic HK.

h  The Company has provided guarantees to support standby letter of credit facilities
to further support up to 80% of the rMB500 million loan facility granted by a bank to

several subsidiaries of the Company involving in optical fibre network. The guarantees
were released in February 2002 upon the sale of interest in the optical fibre network to

CITIC HK.

i The Company has provided a guarantee to Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft,
Hong Kong Branch for a credit facility of up to rm100 million granted to a wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company.

29 Subsequent Events

On 21 December 2001, the Company entered into agreements to acquire interests in
two Shanghai properties together with the related shareholders loans (“the Purchases
Agreements”) from a substantial shareholder, CrTic HK, at a maximum total

consideration of HK$2,770 million.

On 14 January 2002, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its 80% interests
in the China Express No. 1 Backbone Network (“the Network™) to Citic vk (“the Sale
Agreement”) at a maximum consideration of approximately Hk$ 1,64:5 million.
Conditional upon the completion of the Sale Agreement, Citic HK agreed to grant the
Company at a consideration of HK$ 10 a conditional call option to acquire CITiC HK’s
entire interest in the telecommunications business in the pre derived from the
investment by Ciric HK of the 80% interest in the Network acquired under

the Sale Agreement.

f RN RS R — M8 A
) 16 [ R A SRR R A PR RO AL Tt
i (BHBRESH—THAL TS0 M
R A E A Z 80% 2 ARG - ZIENE
RO BT TAE R 2 ST
R R EAERE (k) ARAR (T
fEmW 1) WEfRRR o

g AXFEHH—HETRTALAET
Z M2 BB 2 B A ) 2 N R AR
TCEFERAE 80% Z M RIE TR o EIEIERT R
CERBCEDANEEE R E TR ER
SRR R o

h —RSRITRALFETZ W2
Ak 2 W L R R A R RS - AR R I
A BRHF AT RO 80% 2R > AT
EPA B 2 A A5 ) 1o SR TR B AR 2 4
TR o ZFBRON —FF F LA
RS T S A U AR R o

i AN B H—H2EWE AT 2 AR
B 7 5 S R S 4
HEAER -

29 ZHBESIE
WoEE—AEF A T —H o AAFR L
ik (THEE WD) o DiRm ¥ LSt
T H T2 BAE R RO P 5 A ik O
TH b3 2 R A B B 2 SRR -

e == St Sy S o R /A I RVA T
(M &tk ) Dl A i@ T
0 2 A LS o A — 4 e A
(s ) 2 80% a5 T EHE - TiE
AR 2 DLW 10 ez RER TA LA —
TEAT R R RE > LARE A 5 A s AR
B i T B 2 A A 2 80% HHE it 1 B
o T R E S BT TS 2 I e o L ek
SERAR > BT B HELR H AEA
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Notes to The Accounts

29 Subsequent Events coninued
The Purchases Agreements and the Sale Agreement were completed on 22 January
2002 and 27 February 2002 respectively. Details of the transactions are disclosed in

the circulars to shareholders.

30 Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current presentation as
required under new or revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice

implemented in 2001.

31 Approval of Accounts
The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2002.
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32 Principal Subsidiary Companies

The following are the principal subsidiary companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

and net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiary companies would in the opinion of the directors result in particulars

of excessive length.

Farticulars of Interest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Far Company Subsidiary
Name " Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities
Aviation
Collinson Company Limited Republic of 498 - 100 - Investment holding
Liberia/Bermuda
Custain Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Investment holding
Easerich Investments Inc. British Virgin 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Hilldun Limited Hong Kong 3 HK$ 10 - 100 Investment holding
Jade Wonder Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Motive Link Holdings Inc. British Virgin 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Sidewinder Holdings Limited British Virgin 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Smooth Tone Investments Ltd. British Virgin 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Communications
AaA Internet Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Provision of internet
(Date of acquisition: services and
29 September 2001) advertising agency
Bright Generation Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Ciric 1616 Data Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Provision of data
transmission services
Ciric Pacific Communications Bermuda 100,000 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
Ciric Telecom 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Provision of international
telecommunications
services
Data Communication Services Hong Kong 1,000 Hk$1 - 100 Provision of
Limited 38,000,000 HK$1 telecommunications
equipment
Direct Access Development Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Dynamic Power Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 10 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Essential Elements Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Forever Glory International Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Glamorous Way Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Global Link Information Services Hong Kong 300,000 HK$ 10 - 100 Provision of internet
Limited services
(Date of acquisition:
29 September 2001)
Glorious Style Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Happy Land Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Konik Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Lucky Zone Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands 10 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Oracle Link Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Power Point Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
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Notes to The Accounts

32 Principal Subsidiary Companies coninued

Farticulars of Interest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Far Company Subsidiary

Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % %  Principalactivities
psiNet Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 394,866,986 HK$ 1 - 100 Provision of internet

(renamed as crenet Hong Kong services

Limited on 15 February 2002)

(Date of acquisition: 29 September

2001)
Super Worth Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Supreme Magic Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 80 Investment holding
Vanderburg Inc. British Virgin Islands 10 us$ 1 - 80 Investment holding
Vision Network Limited Hong Kong 2,250,000 HKS 1 - 100 Provision of internet

(Date of acquisition: services

29 September 2001)
‘World Navigation Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$ 1 - 100 Provision of international

2,000,000* HK$ 1 telecommunications
services

Power Generation
Classabove Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Daybreak Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Kong Yuen Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Master Port Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Premier Gold Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Reynolds Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Rising Star Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Sterling Lake Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Sunspark Power Investment Hong Kong 10,000 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding

Company Limited
Roads, Bridges and Tunnels
Adwood Company Limited Hong Kong 10 HK$ 10 20 50 Investment holding
Avon Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Bloomingshire Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Cinta Company Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Crystalime Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Investment holding
Express Link Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Gradius Company Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Hong Kong 75,000,000 1K $ 10 - 69.38  Tunnel operation

Limited
Newly Bright Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Prime Star Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Rich Creation Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Yan Wing Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Environment
Athens Investments, Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Estoril Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Unitex Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Marketing & Distribution
Adachi Trading Company Limited Japan 250 1py50,000 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle

spare parts

Botanitown Pharmaceuticals Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 62 Investmentin
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Farticulars of Interest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Far Company Subsidiary
Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities
Beijing Botanitown Biotechnologies People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 62  Researchand
Limited *Wholly foreign-owned development in
enterprise pharmaceutical products
Confidence Motors Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Hk$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Consolidated Parts & Accessories Hong Kong 1,000 Hk$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
Sales Centre Limited spare parts
Dah Chong Hong (Canada) Ltd. Canada 650,000 - - 100 General import/export
and investment holding
Dah Chong Hong (China) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Hk$100 - 100 Investment holding
Dah Chong Hong — Dragonair Airport Hong Kong 10,000 Hk$1 - 70 Provision of airport
GSE Service Limited ground support
equipment maintenance
services
Dah Chong Hong (Engineering) Hong Kong 10,000 Hk$100 - 100 Engineering services
Limited
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited Hong Kong 21,031,837 HK$ 10 - 100 Investment holding
Dah Chong Hong, Limited Hong Kong 50.000 1Kk$1.,000 - 100 Investment holding;
general importers,
retailers and exporters
dealing in foodstufs,
clectrical appliances
and other products
Dah Chong Hong (Japan) Limited Japan 480,000 JpY1,000 - 100 Importer and exporter of
foodstuffs, motor
vehicles and garments;
property investment
and investment holding
Dah Chong Hong Motors (China) Hong Kong 20,000 Hk$100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Leasing) Hong Kong 10,000 HK$ 10 - 100 Motor leasing
Limited
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Service Hong Kong 2,000 Hk$100 - 100 Motor vehicle repairing
Centre) Limited and servicing
Dah Chong Hong Motors (Nissan- Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
China) Limited
Dah Chong Hong Trading Singapore 3,500,000 s$1 - 100 Investment holding and
(Singapore) Pte. Lid. trading of foodstuffs
DAS Aviation Support Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Hk$1 - 70 Distributor of air cargo
equipment and related
spare parts
pAS Nordisk Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Hk$1 - 49 Repairs and maintenance
services for air cargo
containers and sale of
related spare parts
pct Food Industries Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Investment holding
pcn Healtheare Products Limited Hong Kong 100,000 Hk$100 - 100 Distribution and retailing
of healthcare and
pharmaceutical products
pct Motors (Bentley) Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
pct Motors Lid. Canada 100 can$l - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Excellent Way International Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Gentech Vehicle Engineering Hong Kong 166,000 Hk$1 - 100 Trading of special

Limited

function vehicles
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Notes to The Accounts

32 Principal Subsidiary Companies coninued

AR EBisE

Farticulars of Interest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Far Company Subsidiary
Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % %  Principalactivities
Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 90  Distribution
Co., Lud. *Sino-foreign equity joint
(Date of acquisition: venture
28 February 2001)
Harmony Motors Limited Hong Kong 1,000 1K$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Honest Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000 1k$1,000 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Japan Auto Parts Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000 1K$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
spare parts
Premium Motors Limited Hong Kong 2 1HK$ 1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Regal Motors, Limited Hong Kong 2,000 HK$ 100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Reliance Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000 1k$1,000 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Sims (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 1K $ 10 - 100 Marketing co-ordination
(Date of acquisition: services
28 February 2001)
Sims (Guangdong) Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
(Date of acquisition:
28 February 2001)
Sims Trading Company Limited Hong Kong 3,000 1K$100 - 100 Wholesaling
(Date of acquisition:
28 February 2001)
Shanghai bct Food Industries Lid. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Food processing and
*Wholly foreign-owned trading
enterprise
Shanghai pch Jiangnanfeng Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 46.06  Production and selling
*Sino-foreign equity joint of chickens and related
venture food products
Shanghai bci Shuanghui isp Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 38.5  Production and selling
*Sino-foreign equity joint of meat and related
venture food products
Shanghai rrci Restaurant Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 90 Provision of food,
*Sino-foreign co-operative beverage and retail sales
joint venture of rainforest-theme
souvenir merchandise
Triangle Auto Pte Ltd Singapore 3,000,000 s$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Triangle Motors Limited Hong Kong 30,000 1K$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Triangle Motors (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 1K $ 10 - 100 Investment holding and
trading of motor
Twin Tiger International Limited Hong Kong 2 1HK$ 1 - 100 Trading
(Date of acquisition:
28 February 2001)
Winway Investments Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 100 us$ 1 - 62 Investmentin
pharmaceutical business
VU122 5 W0 B o A PR People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Provision of logistics
*Wholly foreign-owned services
enterprise
AL mTR B M AT IR A ) People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 90 Provision of food,
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Farticulars of Interest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Far Company Subsidiary
Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities
Property
Admarch Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Property investment
Admarch Property Management Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Property management
Company, Limited
Baylink Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Borgia Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Property investment
Broadway Centre Property Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Property management
Management Company Limited
Campbellton Development Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Property development
Famous Land Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Property investment
Glenridge Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Property investment
Goldenburg Properties Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$ 10 - 70 Property investment
Hang Luen Chong Investment Hong Kong 80,000 Hk$100 - 100 Property investment
Company, Limited
Hang Luen Chong Property Hong Kong 2 Hk$ 1 - 100 Property management
Management Company, Limited
Hang Wah Chong Investment Hong Kong 50.000 1k$100 - 100 Property investment
Company Limited
Jewril Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kendorm Corporation Republic of 1 - - 100 Investment holding
Liberia/Bermuda
Kimble Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kowill Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Lindenford Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Property investment
Neostar Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Property investment
Newmarket Holdings Limited British Virgin 2 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Pacific Grace Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 Property investment
Sun King Fung Development Hong Kong 152,343,165 1k $0.10 100 - Investment holding
Limited
Supreme Luck Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Tendo Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Property investment
Yee Lim Godown & Cold Storage Hong Kong 1,000,000 Hk$1 - 100 Operate adry and cold
Limited storage godown
Finance
Balgonie Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 100 - Financing
Cirric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited British Virgin Islands 1,000 us$ 1 100 - Financing
Idealand Investment Inc. Republic of Panama 100 us$1 - 100 Financing
Top Trend Investments Holdings Corp. British Virgin 1 us$1 100 - Financing
Islands/Bermuda
Industrial Manufacturing
Crown Sky Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55 Steel making
Works Co., Ltd. *Sino-foreign equity joint
venture
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel Products People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55 Steel making
Co., Lud. *Sino-foreign equity joint
venture
Jiangsu cp Xingcheng Special Steel People’s Republic of China 390,000,000 RMB 1 - 54.72  Steel making

Co., Lud.

*Foreign investment stock

company
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Notes to The Accounts

32 Principal Subsidiary Companies coninued

AR BBt

Particulars of Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by

Principal place of operation No. of Far Company Subsidiary
Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities
Joyce Court Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Maxy Rich Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Shine Mass Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
‘Wuxi Huada Motors Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55 Industrial motors

*Sino-foreign equity joint manufacturing
venture

Others
Cimic Pacific China Holdings Limited People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Investment holding

*Wholly foreign-owned

enterprise

# Represented ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated.

A Non-voting deferred shares — the rights, privileges and restrictions of which are set out in the Articles of Association of the respective company.

note:

During the year; the Group acquired 100% interesis in Sims Trading Company Limited and creet Hong Kong Limited and their subsidiary companies for nk$601 million

cash and a payable of Wk $ 73 million. As a result, the Group s profit for the year and net assets as at the year end have both been increased by wk$2 million.
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E#77
A M s TR B # TEAIRTE
I%’é&gﬁ{ﬂﬁ 7/\‘2\57 Wgz\a

4 * R AHH W1 3 H 7 {E % % @ EEEH
=
Collinson Company Limited A BTSRRI B e 498 - 100 - BESEKR
Custain Limited il 2 W 10 0 - 100 BEZK
Easerich Investments Inc. BELES,/HRE 1 135t — 100 F&EER
Hilldun Limited il 3 W10 0 - 100 BEZK
Jade Wonder Limited RBRELEE 1 135t — 100 BEER
Motive Link Holdings Inc. EREL R/ TRE 1 IESH - 100 B
Sidewinder Holdings Limited EREL R/ TRE 1 IESH - 100 #EHER
Smooth Tone Investments Ltd. HEELESHRE 1 135t — 100 BEEK
HCES
A Internet Limited Fits p) ek W - 100 $RAEEEBARY

(i A - R T4 J s

HAZFILH)
Hf P B R ] KEELER 1 1 %50 - 80  HEHER
15 1616 BT BRA 7 s 2 W 1T - 100 FRAEECPE s
PEHRE G SR ERA HAE 100,000 W 1o - 100 BEZK
FEEH 1616 ABRA A il 2 W 1o - 100 FR AR R RURES
Data Communication Services Limited it 1,000 ek W - 100 PR N R

38,000,000 A ik T

PR RATIR A KEELER 1 1 %50 - 80  HEER
Dynamic Power Investments Lid. R LR 10 1 %50 - 80 BB
T T AT PR A ) KEELER 1 1 %50 - 80  HEHER
B AT PR ] KEELER 1 1 %50 - 80  HEHER
RHAEARAT KEELER 1 1 %50 - 100 BEZK
HFE B PR A W] il 300,000 W 10 0 - 100 FREETH AR

Ol F - R E 4

HAZFILH)
Glorious Style Enterprises Ltd. KEELER 1 1 %75 - 80 BB
T 2EAT IR T KEELER 1 1 %50 - 80  HEHER
Konik Inc. KEELER 1 1 %50 - 80  HEER
LR A 3 PR A KEELER 10 1 %50 - 80  HEER
Oracle Link Holdings Inc. B I 1 15T - 80 BB
i I A R T KEELER 1 1 %50 - 80  HEHER
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Notes to The Accounts

32 FEMBAE &

AR BBt

CH#r
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T A B AL A WG 2 7l

4 H ENHH R 1 % H A (8 % %  EEXEWK
rsivet Hong Kong Limited i 394,866,986 LT - 100 RACEREARE

(MZFEFHTHHY L5

crenet Hong Kong Limited)

(B - =R

A=A ILH)
Super Worth Investments Inc. BRI LR 1 1370 - 100 fHEHEK
e RA R b e 1 137t - 80  BrEEER
Vanderburg Inc. bS] 10 1 %5t - 80  BrEEER
s KA IR W) il 2,250,000 10 - 100 SR B ARE

(g R - =R

A=A ILH)
B A PR il 1,000 oL TS - 100 SROEE R U B

2,000,000 W 1T

B AT PR ) it 2 W10 - 100 R
FROEFE A IR A 7 il 2 L T - 100 BEZEK
ST EA A il 2 LR T - 100 BEZEK
P AT 22 ] S 1 1378 - 100 e
Premier Gold Holdings Corp. BIRE LR 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
MRS T PR it 2 W10 - 100 R
Rising Star Enterprises Corp. B E LR 1 1370 - 100 HEHEK
A PR2 ] S 1 13670 - 100 R
BB BB RA il 10,000 LR T - 100 BEZEK
2/ - BREREE
Adwood Company Limited i 10 10 T 20 50 BUEEER
Avon Pacific Limited SRR 1 (ESTH - 100 BEER
Bloomingshire Investment Limited BRI LR 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
Cinta Company Limited BRI R 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
B LA R A i 2 Wi 10 oC - 100 BEZEK
Express Link Holdings Ltd. BRI LR 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
Gradius Company Limited B IE LR 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
B BRI A PR A I 75,000,000 w10 T - 69.38 R S
R BEEAT 22 ] S 1 1370 - 100 R
Prime Star Enterprises Limited BRI LR 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
Rich Creation Investments Ltd. B IE LR 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
SR AT 22 ] it 2 W10 - 100 R
RIERE
Athens Investments, Inc. BRI LR 1 137t - 100 HEHEK
Estoril Corp. BIR IR LR 1 1 %50 - 100 BEREMm
Unitex Holdings Corp. BRI LR 1 1 %50 - 100 BEHEMm
HERDH
LEEHMAGH H A 250 50,000 H [ - 100 REEHEY
BREEARAT i 2 oL - 62 AR
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KI5 Z A PO A BRA A s 1,000 #1100 T - 100 REZFEY
KEBST Ungk) FRAH JIEYN 650,000 - — 100 — M o R BUE 4o
KEEHT CFE) HRAR itk 1,000 WU 100 7C - 100 Hegrem i
KB — s HEHRIS B et I PR A ) Fits 10,000 w1 - 70 RSB L'ﬁ
Hes s
KEZE AT TRAT R 7 it 10,000 #1100 T - 100 THRBE
KEBGITEBARAT e 21,031,837 W10 T - 100 BEEER
KEBGITARAR itk 50,000 #EHE 1,000 7T - 100 BeEpEsg s o LR E
i BERA
JHAE
B et K BE 51T H A 480,000 1,000 H - 100 Adh - KRR T
EZIS W& e eLdile
REZEHITRE (hE) ARAR ik 20,000 #1100 T - 100 BEEER
KEfT (REME H&i% ARRAT il 10,000 #1078 - 100 REME
KEE AR L AT BR A A it 2,000 #1100 T - 100 RHHEEMRE
KEBEHTHRE (BE-FE) ARAF &k 9 #1078 - 100 JRELERIT
KEZHIT Fim) FAARATF BN 3,500,000 1B - 100 BEERLKEREY
KB — U HERTM SR A R A A T its 10,000 ik - 0 ZEESM LA
s b
KE — i HE 2 A S A PR A A it 10,000 il - 49z S AEARAE (R IR
BoA B
KEATE M THFARA A 7k 2 W10 T - 100 BEEER
KEAT R EA A Fits 100,000 100 7T - 100 AEHEEERE
TR i
KEBHITRE (HF) ARAF Fits 9 1T - 100 JRELERIT
bt Motors Lid. JIEPN 100 s 1T - 100 JRELERIT
Excellent Way International Lid. KEHELRS 1 1%7C - 100 BE Mk
Al RE AT PR 7 7 166,000 w1 - 100 ASEHRRE I RIRE
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32 FEMBAE &

AR BBt

E#1T
LA s B SR EH # FEATIRAHE
LB KoSHA] g 2 7l
i = N TR 3 H 7 (8 % % @ FEEH
JE SRR AT PR ) i A R AL Nl A% - 90 4
(i A - R T4 NS B
ZHZHAH)
AREEARAH il 1,000 100 7T - 100 JRHALESHIE
AR R il 3,000 AW 1,000 70 - 100 VRHLASHIT
VR ERRA A il 1,000 HEHE 100 G - 100  HHEHES
AR EATRA il p) T - 100 VRHUASHIE
BEREATRAF il 2,000 100 7T - 100 JRHEESHIT
AR R A il 3,000 W 1,000 00 - 100 VRHEUASHIT
HE (hE) BHRAH il 2 W10 0T - 100 G EME
(ffE A - R T4
ZHZHAH)
HE (FEA) ARATF Eils 2 R T - 100 HEEMK
(i A - R T4
ZHZHAH)
HEHRAH il 3,000 #1000 - 100 Ht#
(i A - R T4
ZHZHAH)
PR BT R TEARAF e\ RAL A N A - 100 ST EEY
* A A
FiK B ILr A BRA 7 i N RGN A% Nl - 46.06  EEMBEER
NGBS B ATHI
[ 1 K B S AT PR A ] e\ RGN A% Nl - 385 EELRHERE
NGBS B ATHI
[ K B MR B AT PR A ] e\ RGN A% Nl - 90 R MKIRE
* AN IEREE 2 T BT DB AR
VB P wrin
A RIRE RN AT R ) Hrns 3,000,000 1 Fmgoe - 100 VRHEASHIT
BRI IR il 30,000 100 G - 100 VRHALASHIT
ARIRE () A7 RRA T il p) w10 0 - 100 BEERLREZY)
2K B A PR i 2 i T - 100 &Y
(B A - R T4
ZHZHAH)
ZR PG R A RBIEL R 100 1350 - 62 BERERER
VU2 & D B o AT PR A e\ RGN N Nl - 100 HEAE
* A A
UK B MR AT PR A ) e\ RGN PNl A% - 90 AL MKARES K& E L)
* AN IEREE 2 e VRS
Z A&
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Baylink Investments Limited RRE LR 1 1 %76 - 100 Eid erdlld
Borgia Limited itk 2 w10 T - 100 Y¥EkE e
TR DA R A Fits 2 1t - 100 P i
LHRRARAT it 2 BT - 100 PG b
FATIRA R Fils 2 w1 T - 100 s
Glenridge Company Limited i 2 W10 o0 - 100 PFERE
Goldenburg Properties Limited i 1,000 W 10 70 - 0 PERE
Tl B A TR A i 80.000 W 100 T - 100 WEdE
TR 5 ) S BEAT B ) 7k 2 oL T - 100 PEH
fafE S BEARATR i 50.000 W 100 T - 100 e
Jewril Limited itk p) LB - 100 HEHER
Kendorm Corporation AL R ILAE 1 - - 100 BEEER
Kimble Investment Limited REREL RS 1 1 %76 - 100 Eid erdlla
Kowill Investments Inc. RRE LR 1 1 %70 - 100 Eid erdlla
Lindenford Limited il 2 s 10 C - 100 ¥EfE
BEBEARAR il 2 s 1T - 100 PHERYE
Newmarket Holdings Limited KRR LT T 2 1¥£5E - 100 HEHMR
A RA A i 2 W - 100 e
H B R ATIR AR i 152,343,165 W 0.10 ¢ 100 - BEER
Supreme Luck Investments Ltd. EEELEE 1 1% - 100 BEEER
Tendo Limited i 2 W 10 ¢ - 100 e
WHERREHRAR T 1,000.000 s 1 oe - 100 REHEEER
Eped
Balgonic Limited it 2 w1 100 - RERH
Crric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited S R 1,000 1 #7 100 - BERH
Idealand Investment Inc. CE LA 100 170 - 100 Al 22
Top Trend Investments Holdings Corp. EHELRE/ HAE 1 1% 100 - Al 22
T8
TR BB AR ) SRR 1 17T - 100wk
VL P L R R 0 PR A ) HhE A LA A AT - 55 B
AN B
VL P L8 G A A R HhE A LA A AT - 55 SR
AN BRI
TLRRAR o B A IR B Hrfe A R AL 390,000,000 ARH 15T - 5472 BEERE
AR H * S Oy A 2
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E#1T

LA s B SR EH # FEATIRAHE

LB KoSHA] g 2 7l
i L ANHEH JR G #H A7 (8 % % @ FEEH
BHERRAH RBELER 1 1 %50 - 100 &R
AR RAH RBIELEE 1 1 %50 - 100 HEZER
SeAPE A R RBELEE 1 1 %50 - 100 EZER
SESFEE TRAT PR ) e N\ R AN PNl A% - 55  TETHUE

NGBS
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N IR — LI R ~ R RER IR SR AT B 2 7l 2 AL FEAA A o

FHFE < AR > A58 LB TN 0 — 17 T R AR FOB WF-L T = 1 BT L B 59 47 IR Rl K crener Hong Kong Limited XFBHE 2 F.2 100% HEdi < A
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33 Principal Associated Companies

The following are the principal associated companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

and net assets of the Group. To give details of other associated companies would in the opinion of the directors result in particulars

of excessive length.

Name

Place of

incorporation/operation

Group equity

interest %

Principal activities

Aviation
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (note)
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited

Swire Aviation Limited

Communications
Citic Guoan Co., Ltd.

Companhia de Telecomunicacoes

de Macau S.A.R.L.

Tunnels

Eastern Harbour Crossing Company
Limited

Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways
Management Company Limited

Western Harbour Tunnel

Company Limited

Environment

Ecoserve Limited

Enviropace Limited

Green Valley Landfill, Limited

South China Transfer Limited

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

People’s Republic of
China

Macau

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

25.81
28.50
33.33

20

35

35

50

20

30

30

Airlines and related services

Aviation

Investment holding in
Hong Kong Air Cargo

Terminals Limited

Investment holding

Telecommunications services

Tunnel operation

Management, operation
and maintenance of the
Cross Harbour Tunnel

Franchise to construct
and operate the Western

Harbour Crossing

Design, construction
and operation of refuse
transfer station
Design, construction,
operation and management of
chemical waste treatment plant
Landfill construction
and operation
Design, construction and

operation of transfer station
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Notes to The Accounts

33 Principal Associated Companies coninued

AR EBisE

Place of Group equiry
Name incorporation/operation interest % Principal activities
Property
Cheer First Limited Hong Kong 40 Financing
Crtic Tower Property Management Hong Kong 40 Property management
Company Limited
Danton Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ 40 Investment holding
Hong Kong
Festival Walk Holdings Limited Hong Kong 50 Property investment
Goldon Investment Limited Hong Kong 40 Property investment
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited Hong Kong 50 Property development
Kido Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ 15 Property development
Hong Kong
Shinta Limited Hong Kong 20 Property investment
Sun Kong Investment Company, Hong Kong 40 Property development
Limited
Treasure Trove Limited Hong Kong 50 Financing
Others
Shiseido Dah Chong Hong Cosmetics Hong Kong 50 Trading in cosmetic products
Limited
Way Chong Finance Limited Hong Kong 50 Provision of hire purchase and

leasing finance

Note: Extract from the published accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, a significant associated company of the Group. is shown on pages 126 and 127.
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Swire Aviation Limited A itk 33.33 RAEBZE R RA R Z 8 E
fER%
R B AT PR HhE N R 50 BEHE
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B
Eastern Harbour Crossing Company Limited i 50 WRE R
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33 FEHEAE 4

AR BBt

t M7
# i b B ZIRIE % EX =3
E7/E
Cheer First Limited il 40 il 2
Hif R A PR 7 it 40 /ESgi
Danton Investment Limited IR LR 40 RGP
YA PR 7 il 50 WENE
SELEARAF it 40 ES e
HHFSEA R A7 A itk 50 LES Y
Kido Profits Limited IR LR 15 Y EX13
R A R ] itk 20 ES 8
Wk EEARA T A itk 40 LE 4
Treasure Trove Limited ik 50 EiY g0
Hit
AR BATILHE A PR ) A itk 50 ek & 2
1 B BT A PR W it 50 SR S A B

MfaE © AL TEEE L A REA S AR A 2 C MR A SRR A 126 K 127 H -
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34 Principal Co-operative Joint Ventures

The following are the principal co-operative joint ventures of the Group, which in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results and net assets of the Group. To
give details of other co-operative joint ventures would in the opinion of the directors
result in particulars of excessive length. All of the principal co-operative joint ventures

have their place of incorporation and operations in the People’s Republic of China.

Co-operative

34 FESEAEAT

TS EE G R TR AL 2 KN
EEFEIALILESEGEAR - #E
TRe I AR B A R R A
WERBRICR - Fri TR AEGE LT
GiE YN TP HAUNE § e

Joint venture Group equity Principal
Name period interest % Activities
1 BIEAE L Al R B e % FEEH
Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power (note a) 56.31 Electric power plant construction
Company Limited (“Ligang”) and operation
TLEFFIE R AR ([HH D) (BT 2) BRINEER RS
Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development 31 years from 50 Tunnel construction, management

7 October 1993
—NN=F+HEH#RG =+

Co., Ltd. (note ¢)
L ERE R RARAT (HEE o
Shanghai Huang Pu River Tunnel 20 years from
and Bridges Development Co., Ltd. 1 January 1995
(note ¢)
FEHTLREE R AR AR (M5 o —ULESE—H — B#ER =44
Shanghai Jian Tai Co., Ltd.
(note ¢)

LR BEARAT (o)

20 years from
1 January 1996
— AR E— A — BlEt =14

Shanghai Xupu Bridge Development
Co., Ltd. (note ¢)
LI RHAEREARAF (HEE o

20 years from
1 July 1996
—JUUAREL A — HilE =14

Zhengzhou Xinli Electric Power (note b)
Co., Lid. (“Xinli”)
NG BT ABRAR (1)) (P 3E b)

note:

a  Ligang Phase [ and 1] are accounted for as investments of the Group as the Group’s interests therein will
revert (o the joint venture pariners in the People’s Republic of China afier fificen years and twenty years
respectively from the date on which the eleciricity generators became operational. Accordingly their results are

accounted for to the extent of dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

b Xinli is accounted for as investment of the Group as the Group’s interest therein will revert to the joint
venture partners in the People’s Republic of China afier fificen years from the date on which the electricity
generators became operational. Accordingly its results are accounted for to the extent of dividends received and

receivable, less amounts amortised.

¢ The Group is guaranteed a fived return on the investment amount of the co-operative joint ventures. Upon
the expiration of the co-operation period, all the Group's interests in Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development Co.,
Lid. will revert to Shanghai People’s Government and all the Group's interests in the assets of the other co-

operative joint ventures will revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s Republic of China.

45

45

45

50

and operation

BEE RS - R

Tunnel and bridges management

and operation

BEAE S A B 2 R R R

Toll road management

and operation

& UNPASIYE LS

Bridge management
and operation
[ FA NS

Electric power plant construction
and operation

gl YT

Pt

a Pl 2B BRI R 2 HEA
JE o [ 7 25 BRI B 1 AP P AR = A
JE IS o A 5E R 3 5 I H 2 R M o i
RALTIE 2 BB HIA - #L - ZFRERAZ
FERMETHT E AR NI, » WS A -

b HIERASERZ AR  FE RS FEE
BB o A - AR SR % 2 A
RN RS 2 &SI < Bt
BEIRH 2 FA T EACRENORE. - S -

o BEBERRGFEAERELFALFEREPR
AR o S IEMIE T - A SE R L b5
AR LY Al — UK 4t A o L o T A R BUT
Pty s MAEBRHMEFEE NS FEESZ—
U HE a5 Al o B T EARIERI 2 B E
P e
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Auditors’ Report A S

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Citic Pacific Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabiliry)

We have audited the accounts on pages 62 to 123 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, save as

explained in accounting policy Note 1p on page 76.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare accounts
which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and

applied consistently.

Itis our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those

accounts and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied

and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.
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B ERERRAT
(R Z L M s 2 TR A F])
e

AR BT 8 SR 62 255 123 H I BB
Herl > REIHS S T4k R R A &
FHRRIAR R (PR T6 H 2 SRt BORMEES
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EEREHMEENEE
il R G R BB AR AT
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BN 25 g stEoR -

AR TUE R AR 2 5528 > B
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BRMEH

AR 35 BR Al i & LA 9 A
B IS TR A% TAF o RO L A L A
77 A SR o R BB S TR
BB R o I B0 o A R
IRF A 0 B AG s AR - BT R st
HRERES RAFE  BEmm R
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(72}
-
o
Opinion ER S
In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the LA U RS e S DN U -
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of THER BARE HEER -EFETF
the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with -+ =+ — H&EEREBBIRGL > 1 £ S
=]
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. SEEEZH IR A MBS - T
IR A R RO Z o - "
4
¥
"
PricewaterhouseCoopers BRERRBUKEG TSR
Certfied Public Accountants K erathin
Hong Kong, 14 March 2002 il “EFFFE=A A
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Extract from Published Accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Jor the year ended 31 December 2001

ERMEARAFEAMHIRE ZHE

a HerEnk
R O Y ES N s

in vk million 2001 2000 Vi AL B
Turnover BEH

Passenger services 20,580 22,878 R

Cargo services 8,343 10,136 B s

Catering and other services 1,513 1,509 i 22 i R LAt AR S
Total turnover 30436 34,523 ERAHE
Expenses X

Staff (7,629) (7,482) BT

Route (6,698) (6,756) fii B

Fuel (5,313) (5,770) JRRL

Aircraft maintenance (3,234) (2,920) etk 1z

Depreciation and operating leases (4.968) (4,244) Pres s e

Commissions (539) (719) 4

Others (1.223) (1,343) HAt
Operating expenses _(29.604) (29.234) ERRX
Operating profit 832 5,289 EEiRH

Finance charges (2.668) (2,731) I

Finance income 2,097 2,364 B
Net finance charges (571) (367) HABsSZiiaE
Profit on sale of investments 452 - HEREZEA
Share of profits of associated companies 188 279 HERGIBHE -~ FiE A
Profit before taxation 901 5,201  BRBLELGF
Taxation (202) (110)  FiJAE
Profit after taxation 699 5,091 R#BERN
Minority interests (42) (86) DB HME L
Profit attributable to shareholders 657 5,005  IRERFE(LTEF
Dividends (1,915) (1,585) W&
Retained (loss)/profit for the year (1,258) 3,420 AEERY (BHE) HH
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Extract from Published Accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

b Consolidated Balance Sheet

ERM=RRATEAMRE ZHE

b &HEAERRER

At 31 December 2001 IR T H = HEE
kS million 2001 2000 M EET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERARE
Non-current assets and liabilities FRBEERERE
Fixed assets 51,660 48,548 [ EE
Intangible assets 454 411 W EE
Investments in associated companies 1,590 1,532 RBEARZHE
Other long-term receivables and investments 1,575 2,224 JURMIBREIELE
...?3.279 52,715
Long-term liabilities (39.208) (36,863) RMEME
Related pledged security deposits 17,194 17,808 HilBd 2 A f7 3K
Net long-term liabilities (22,014) (19,055) RMEEFHE
Deferred taxation (7.836) (7,146) IEAEFIIE
_(29.850) _ (26,201)
Net non-current assets 25,429 26,514  FREBEEFH
Current assets and liabilities REBEERERE
Stock 587 647 HHE
Trade and other receivables 4,778 5,006  E5 KA IR
Liquid funds 9,764 11,040 W#HES
_______ 15,129 16,693
Current portion of long-term liabilities (3,241) (2,918) EMaEZ RS
Related pledged security deposits 1,231 L135  HBCHEmER
Net current portion of long-term liabilities (2.010) (1,783) W& BT F4
Trade and other payables (4,556) (5,619) &5 B HADRERT A
Unearned transportation revenues (1,965) (2,254)  ARAEH S
Taxation (626) (620) BiIH
157 (10,276)
Net current assets 5,972 6.417 REEEFE
Total assets less current and
non-current liabilities 31,401 32,931 BEAERRBRERDERE
Minority interests (93) (99) DB HE R
Net assets 31,308 32,832 BEFHE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BX R fttE
Share capital 666 670  JBA
Reserves 30,642 32,162 i
Shareholders’ funds 31,308 32,832 RBEEE
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10 Year Statistics

s

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
At year end (nk$million): R (BMEET)
Shareholders’ funds - 10,258 21,608 25426 26,971 36,912 40,538 42,032 38240 41,304 41,637  BHES-
per share (1K$) 8.16 11.94 12.61 13.40 17.30 19.06 19.76 17.98 18.81 19.01 Wk (&)
Debt - fifii-
debt less bank deposits 172 2,856 8.951 9,092 9,649 22,592 21,175 10,519 10,508 10,008 AT
net debt/shareholders’
funds 2% 13% 35% 34% 26% 56% 50% 28% 25% 24% FEBIGRRE S
net debt/stockmarket
value 1% 6% 24% 17% 10% 34% 60% 17% 17% 26% ARG
interest cover (Zmes) 16 33 9 10 19 6 4 4 5 6 FEH ()
Capital employed 11,373 25,119 35173 36,677 47155 63,840 64,107 56,803 57013 56,276  E&HEH
Fixed assets 5.097 5,951 8,684 9,045 9,929 10472 11,765 11916 13433 14,702  [EEE
Associated companies 4,176 16,167 19,997 20,529 26,166 39,645 39,604 22,334 25434 25,027 /Nl
Investments 224 1,054 4,330 5,670 9.208 11,196 11,574 14,560 9.479 8,449 HE
Stockmarket capitalization 17,224 46,130 38,000 53,000 95,800 65,520 35530 62,230 60,720 37,993  TifH
REFEREI - B R
EBITDA 1341 2272 1975 4040 4321 5706 4739 4763 5240 3,769 B 2 AF 0l
For the year (ikSmillion): EE (E¥EET)
Earnings - BA -
Earnings 945 1,792 977 2,963 6,769 7,201 2,628 2,735 3.291 2,110 BA
per share - (1K $) 0.79 1.03 0.50 1.47 3.18 3.38 1.24 1.29 1.49 0.96 - (¥
Dividends - B -
per share — (HK$) - (BEor)
regular 0.30 0.38 0.48 0.55 0.62 0.70 0.70 0.75 0.85 0.80 gl
special - - - - 0.30 0.30 - 2.00 - - FiHl
cover (zimes) 2.6 2.7 1.0 2.7 2.7 2.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.2 w8 ()
Number of shareholders 10,151 6,794 7,256 6.545 6.215 8.642 14,987 13,506 9,808 11,044 P A e
Number of employees 5,000 10,000 10,000 11,500 11,750 11,800 11,871 10,490 11,354 11,733  BLAH
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Glossary

Terms:
Capital Employed

Cash Contributed

From All Business

Total Debt
Net Debt

Shareholders’ Equity

Total Capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios:

Earnings Per Share

Shareholders’
Equity Per Share

Leverage

Cashflow Per Share

Interest Cover

Capital employed represents sharcholders’ funds

plus total borrowings

Cash inflow to Crtic Pacific Ltd. from

all its subsidiary companies, associated companies
and other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds

Total debt less cash and bank deposits

Shareholders’ funds + unimpaired goodwill written

off to reserves for accounting purposes
Shareholders’ equity + net debt

Profit for the year less interest expense, taxation,

depreciation and amortisation
Net income from each business before amortisation

of goodwill, and interest and overheads paid by
Crric Pacific Lid.

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ equity

Total issued and fully paid shares at
end of the year

Net debt

Total captial

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares

at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense
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Major Properties held by the Group

as at 31 December 2001

Major Properties Held For Investment

Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Lapiry Interest % Hoor Area (sq. Ji.) Listing Use
* 1, Skyway House, 3 Sham Mong Road, Kowloon 2041 100 294,158 Commercial

2604,/2700th shares of KIL, No. 9706 & the extension thereto

2. Block Cof Yee Lim Industrial Centre, 2-28 Kwai Lok Street, and 2047 100 320,195 Cold Storage &
2-6 Kwai Hei Sureet, Kwai Chung Godown
4000/9000th shares of KCTL No. 333

3. Honest Motors Building, 9-11, Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, 2880 100 47487 Commercial
Hong Kong IL No. 5431 and 5432

4. Wyler Centre 1, Basement 1 & 2 and Parking Spaces Nos P50 and 2047 100 393,488 Industrial
P51 on 2nd Floor of Wyler Centre 2, 192-210 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories
5779/11152th shares of and in the Remaining Portion of Kwai Chung Town
Lot No. 130 and the extension thereto

5. Broadway Centre, No. 93 Kwai Fuk Road, Kwai Chung, 2047 100 343,000 Godown
New Territories KCTL No. 435

6. DCH Commercial Centre, No. 25, Westlands Road, 2047 100 389,000 Commercial
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong IL8854

7. CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong IL No. 8822 2047 40 562,000 Commercial

8. Festival Walk, Tat Chee Avenue, Yau Yat Tsuen, Kowloon NKIL No. 6181 2047 50 1,200,000 Commercial

9. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill I-1204., Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 873 Residential
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

10. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-0 4-chome, Freehold 100 2,012 Residential
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 2,264 Residenual
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

12. Dah Chong No. 1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome, Freehold 100 34,528 Commercial &
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, ete.

13. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome, Freehold 100 13.067 Commercial &
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, etc.

14. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold 100 7.352 Residential & Office

*excluding a petrol filling station on the ground floor with an ancillary storage tank in part of the basement and a storeroom on the first floor

Major Properties Held For Development

Lisumated Approximate  Approximate
Stageof  Completion Leasehold Groups Site Area - Gross Foor
Location / Lot No. Completion Date - Classification Lapiry Interest % (sq.fi)  Area(sq.fi)  Existing Use
1. LotNos. 390Rp, 394Rp. 395, 396, 397, 399, 400, N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 193,652 N/A Construction
401,402, 405,406, 407,409, 410Rp. 412Rp. Site
413Rp, 414Rp, 416, 417,418, 419 and 424 in
D.D. No. 121 and Lot Nos. 274Rp, 278Rp. 279Rp,
282Rp. 283Rp, 284, 285, 286sB Rp, 286sB ssl and
286Rp in D.D. No. 127 Yuen Long, New Territories
2. LotNo. 3723 sD Rpin D.D. No. 104 and Lot N/A N/A N/A 2047 40 2449517 N/A  Agricultural
Nos. 43A and 50 in D.D. No. 101 and Lot Nos. 1266Rp, Land
1267 and 1268 in D.D. No. 105, Yuen Long.
New Territories
3. No. 500 and 502, Tung Chau Street, Cheung Sha Wan, N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 20,258 N/A  Construction
Kowloon Site
NKIL No. 4751 & 4752
Major Properties Held For Sale
Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Lapiry Interest % Floor Area (sq.fi.) Fisting Use
Grand Court, 109-135 Kadoorie Avenue, Kowloon 2006 100 135.340 Residental

Subsections 1 and 2 and the Remaining Portion of Section D of KIL No. 2657
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B A 25 9K B AT R L
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v B SR 1P R KR L B 8822 5%

JUREM —F i 2 5 X — R LR B 6 18 1495
Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill I-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome,
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome,

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome,

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

. Dah Chong No. 1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome,

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan

. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome,

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan

. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome,

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
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Corporate Information ATEH

Headquarters and Registered Office EMERERMNER

32nd Floor, Crtic Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong T PR L — R R =+

Contact Hieg

www.citicpacific.com www.citicpacific.com

Telephone: 2820 2111 Fax: 2877 2771 AR 28202111 [ESCEE - 28772771

Email: contact@citicpacific.com BT EAF - contact@citicpacific.com

Security Information EHEHE

Ciric Pacific Lid. is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. H i 2 A PR R TR A R B S B BT

American Depositary Receipts are traded over the counter in the United States. SEBTHFERE IR AE R UG 5 7 ST H
=

Bloomberg: 267 HK EQUITY I 0 267 nk routy

Reuters: 0267. HK  ADR: CTPCY BEIEAL © 0267.1K  ADR: CTPCY

Auditors T

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong BB ST UK B A S T

FHPRATRE -+

Registrars B 13 BT EE
Tengis Limited, 4th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong B FERF AT PR
Telephone: 2846 9666  Fax: 2810 8185 7ol AR SRR RT R L Y

A 2846 9666 [ CEE - 28108185

Company Secretary ATHE

Alice Tso Mun Wai S

Investor Relations REERE

Holly Chen, Investor Relations Manager PG ERIREIE

Telephone: 2820 2004 Fax: 2104 6632 B 0 28202004 ESCHE 21046632

Email: investor.relations@citicpacific.com BT EAE < investor.relations@eciticpacific.com

Key Dates EEQH

Closure of Register: 3 May 2002 to 9 May 2002 BILBE R EFETERA=AE

Annual General Meeting: 9 May 2002, 10:30 a.m. “EETHERANA
Island Ballroom, Level 5 BoRBEERE - “FFTAERLANA
Island Shangri-La LA =40
Two Pacific Place (RN EINEY
Supreme Court Road 5 I B A AL S
Hong Kong T B

Final Dividend payable: 15 May 2002 REARBKE - —FE-HHLA+HH
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